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| CORPORATE SNAPSHOT  

ABOUT THIS REPORT  

This report covers Western Power’s financial performance and statutory obligations for the 
period 1 July 2012 to 30 June 2013.  

It reports on a broad range of business issues complementary to those defined in the 
Statement of Corporate Intent agreed annually with the Minister for Energy, consistent with 
the Electricity Corporations Act 2005 (WA) and the Electricity Industry Act 2004 (WA).  

The report aims to provide a snapshot of Western Power’s business, insight into our 
operational performance and a full account of our finances. All information provided, 
including data and statistics, is at 30 June 2013, unless stated otherwise. 

To help us continue to improve our corporate reporting, we invite your feedback via email to 
comment@westernpower.com.au.   
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW  
Significant changes in our community are impacting on Western Power.  This year has seen 
Western Power focus on developing the best way to respond to the challenges presented by 
these changes.  Though we have much to do, our achievements over the last year are very 
encouraging. 

One of the big challenges before us is adapting to changing patterns of energy use in the 
community and maintaining a supply of electricity that continues to support the Western 
Australian economy and way of life. 

The number of customers connected to the Western Power Network continues to grow each 
year, however, consumption on the distribution network has declined due to shifts in 
consumer behaviour such as the trend towards more energy efficient appliances.   

For Western Power, this means funding an expanding network while receiving less revenue 
than anticipated.  The challenge is further heightened due to demand during peak periods 
remaining high. 

Combined with other issues like the ageing nature of the network’s poles and wires, and the 
growing popularity of renewable but intermittent energy sources, the Board determined that 
there was a need for us to confront these challenges with a new approach and a change in 
strategic direction. 

This is the challenge that was set for the new Chief Executive Officer, Paul Italiano upon his 
appointment in August 2012.  Since his appointment, Paul has done an excellent job leading 
the organisation in the development of a new strategy as outlined on page 34. 

Our results over the year have been positive with improved workforce safety and a works 
program delivered at an overall lower cost. There is still a long way to go, we are not 
complacent and we are fully committed to achieving the outcomes described in our strategy.  
No one should doubt our determination to improve further in the years ahead as detailed in 
our Strategic Plan.  

During the year, $1.05 billion was invested in capital improvement, mostly on our ageing 
network.  This represents more than five times our net profit after tax for the period of 
$191 million.  As a consequence, net debt increased by $713 million to $6.19 billion. 

This year marked the commencement of our third access arrangement period (AA3).  The 
final decision for the AA3 determined the Government-approved funding arrangements for 
the five year period to June 2017.  While this provides for continuing high levels of 
investment in asset replacement, it is important to recognise that delivering the standard of 
network performance expected by customers and stakeholders will require multi-billion dollar 
investment above levels in the State Budget and for a period well beyond AA3.  Because of 
this, we will continue to prioritise asset replacement programs in areas and asset types (such 
as wood poles and conductors) assessed as presenting the highest risk of failure. 

As the Chairman of a State Government-owned enterprise, I would like to acknowledge and 
thank both our former Minister for Energy, Hon. Peter Collier MLC and our current Minister, 
Hon. Dr Mike Nahan MLA for their support during the year and their ongoing support in the 
implementation of Western Power’s new strategic direction. 

On behalf of the Board, I would also like to thank and acknowledge the commitment and 
understanding of our management team and employees during a period of challenge and 
organisational change. 

Finally, I would like to acknowledge my fellow directors for their commitment and support 
over the last year.  

Alan Mulgrew 
Chairman 
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CEO’S REVIEW 

The Western Australian electricity sector was disaggregated in 2006. Since then, it has been 
Western Power’s responsibility to transport electricity between electricity generators and 
energy consumers connected to the South West Interconnected Network (SWIN or “the 
Network”).  

The 2012/13 financial year marked a period of transition for Western Power as the 
corporation made changes to the way it operates in order to respond to the challenges of the 
previous financial year and decades of underinvestment in maintaining and replacing 
network assets, particularly wood poles.   

In addition, growth in the Western Australian economy continues to drive growth in demand 
for Western Power’s services, with the number of customers connected to the Network 
increasing by 1.6 per cent during the financial year and the energy transported over the 
Network increasing by 1.4 per cent.  Growth in both the economy and population is expected 
to drive further growth in demand for Western Power’s services. 

To service this growth and address the historical underinvestment in Network assets, 
Western Power increased its total capital investment program in 2012/13 by 17 per cent to 
$1.05 billion, with approximately one third of that amount being spent directly on improving 
the safety of the Network.  Despite the significant increase in investment, further increases 
will be required in the future if Western Power is to meet obligations and service growth.    

The year also witnessed the finalisation of Western Power’s third access arrangement, which 
expires in June 2017.  Revenue, which is set by the Economic Regulation Authority (ERA) as 
part of the access arrangement, was $1.54 billion for the year, an increase of 3.6 per cent 
compared to 2011/12. 

Despite the significant increase in Western Power’s work program in 2012/13, a review of 
operating efficiency resulted in a reduction in operating expenditure for the year of $25.5 
million (4.3 per cent) compared to the previous financial year.   

Growth in revenue was lower than growth in network investment. Consequently Western 
Power relied more heavily on debt to fund its work program.  This resulted in a 13 per cent 
increase in total debt to $6.19 billion as at the end of the financial year.  Given constraints on 
revenue set out in the access arrangement, and the ongoing requirement to invest in the 
Network, it is expected that debt levels will continue to increase until the end of the access 
arrangement in 2017. 

Energy  

Electricity Consumption 

During the year, a total of 17,082 gigawatt hours (GWh) of energy was transported from 62 
generators to 1,050,696 customers connected to the SWIN.   

The 1,048,398 small-use customers connected to the distribution network (such as 
households and small businesses) recorded a reduction in total electricity consumed for the 
second consecutive year.  Western Power transported 8,693 GWh to these customers, which 
was 45 GWh (0.5 per cent) lower than in 2011/12.  This reduction in electricity consumption 
occurred despite over 16,800 additional customers being connected to the Network and was 
a result of consumers responding to the higher price of electricity, the use of more energy 
efficient electrical appliances and the effect of rooftop solar power systems.   

The remaining 8,389 GWh transported by Western Power was supplied to 2,298 large-use 
(mostly commercial and industrial) customers, which was 3.5 per cent higher than last year.  

The net increase in electricity transported over the Network was 1.4 per cent.  
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Peak Demand 

Peak demand during the 2012/13 financial year was 3,611 megawatts (MW), which was 87 
MW below the peak demand recorded in 2011/12.  This occurred at 4:45pm, 12 February 
2013; the day that Perth experienced its fourth consecutive day over 38° Celsius and a 
maximum temperature of 40.5°.   

Investment 

Network Investment  

Western Power invested a total of $940 million in the Network during 2012/13. 

Approximately $370 million of this was spent on programs to reduce safety risks posed by 
the Network, including replacing or reinforcing 65,911 wood poles, replacing old overhead 
conductors and installing new line separators.  A further $281 million was spent facilitating 
new connections to the Network, while $75 million was invested in improving existing 
infrastructure in areas of the Network experiencing increased demand.  

$87 million in capital expenditure was incurred on the Mid West Energy Project, one of the 
largest electricity infrastructure projects in Australia in the past 25 years.  

The remaining network capital expenditure was incurred to support metering services, 
compliance obligations and the State Underground Power Program.  

Other Capital Investment  

Total non-network capital investment for the year was $108 million.  This includes 
investments in heavy fleet to support field operations, property acquisitions for future network 
requirements (such as substations and terminals) and information systems. 

Debt 

The level of investment in the Network led to an increase in debt of $713 million in 2012/13, 
with total debt reaching $6.19 billion as at 30 June.  Interest on this debt was $312 million, an 
increase of $33 million (12 per cent) over 2011/12.  

Revenue 

Total revenue to Western Power for the year was $1.54 billion, which includes $569 million in 
tariffs from residential customers (up $25 million compared to 2011/12) and $757 million from 
commercial customers (up $14 million).  A further $74 million in revenue was received from 
generators connected to the Network (down $2 million).  

$154 million of the revenue collected by Western Power (or 10 per cent) was for the Tariff 
Equalisation Contribution, which ensures customers not connected to the SWIN pay the 
same price for their electricity as Western Power’s customers.  

Operating Expenditure 

Operating expenditure fell by $25.5 million in 2012/13.  The $570 million in operating 
expenditure was 4.3 per cent lower than in 2011/12, which was a result of an increased focus 
on efficiency of operations.   

Included in operating expenditure was $256 million spent on network maintenance and fault 
repairs, including clearing vegetation and rectifying storm damage. A further $139 million was 
spent on customer service, balancing electrical supply with demand and network monitoring 
activity. 

Profit 

Net profit after tax (NPAT) for the 2012/13 financial year was $191 million.   

NPAT includes capital contributions such as gifted assets for which Western Power receives 
no economic benefit.  Western Power is required to record these items as revenue for 
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accounting purposes.  After adjusting for the effect of capital contributions, normalised NPAT 
for 2012/13 was $93 million. Of this, $39 million was derived from the 927,511 residential 
customers connected to the SWIN, which represents an average of $42 per residential 
customer per year.  

Performance 

Network Reliability  

On average, each customer experienced less than three power interruptions of greater than 
60 seconds during the year, for a total time without power of less than six hours per annum 
per customer. These results are within stipulated reliability standards required of the 
Network. 

Workforce Safety 

The frequency of Lost Time Injuries (LTIFR) reduced from 1.6 to 0.8 during 2012/13, a 
reduction of 50 per cent.   

Public Safety 

The number of public safety incidents related to the Network increased during the financial 
year from 119 in 2011/12 to 147 in 2012/13.  The increase in public safety incidents was 
mostly driven by an increase in the number of pole top fires experienced during the year.  
Pole top fires occur when light rain falls after prolonged dry periods during which insulators 
become contaminated with dust and other conductive material.  The moist, dusty conditions 
can result in arcing which may ignite timber poles and cross-arms.   Western Power has a 
program of work to replace older style insulators with newer, dust-resistant insulators.  In 
high and extreme fire risk areas, Western Power also has a program of work to coat older 
style insulators with silicone, which has been effective in reducing the risk of pole-top fires. 

Regulation and Compliance 

Compliance 

Western Power recorded one breach of a ‘Type 1’ compliance obligation during the financial 
year compared to five in 2011/12. 

Regulation 

2012/13 saw the finalisation of Western Power’s third access arrangement, with the ERA 
issuing its final decision in November 2012. The ERA’s final determination included a 
significant cost reduction challenge for Western Power. 

 

I would like to acknowledge the contribution to the business of four members of our 
Executive team who left the business during the last year. Kevin Gaitskell, Mark de Laeter, 
Ken Brown and Phil Southwell were an integral part of the WA electricity industry. I have 
greatly valued their knowledge, support and expertise and wish them all the best for the 
future.   

Finally, I would like to thank Western Power’s employees and contractors who, through a 
period of significant change, have maintained their high levels of professionalism delivering 
very good results for our customers and improved safety conditions for our workforce.  

 

Paul Italiano  
Chief Executive Officer 
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OUR PROFILE  
 

WHO WE ARE 

Western Power is a Western Australian State Government owned corporation that connects 
more than one million customers with electricity in a way that is safe, reliable and affordable. 

We build, maintain and operate the electricity network in southern Western Australia, 
bounded by Kalbarri, Albany and Kalgoorlie. The Western Power Network forms the vast 
majority of the South West Interconnected Network (SWIN), which together with all of the 
electricity generators, comprises the South West Interconnected System (SWIS).  

We do not generate electricity (like Verve Energy for example), retail electricity (like Synergy 
for example) or operate in geographic areas of Western Australia outside of the SWIS 
(Horizon Power). 

Western Power is governed by an independent Board and reports to the Western Australian 
Minister for Energy as the owner’s representative. 

We operate depots and offices throughout the SWIS region including our head office in 
Wellington Street, Perth. 
 

OUR PURPOSE 

Western Power’s purpose is connecting people with electricity. 
 

OUR NETWORK 

The Western Power Network covers an area of 254,920 square kilometres. Unlike other 
major areas on the east coast of Australia, which are serviced by a series of interconnected 
networks known as the National Electricity Market (NEM), the Western Power Network is 
isolated and self-contained. This means that it must deliver the electricity needs of our 
customers without outside back up or support.  

First established in the early part of the twentieth century, the Western Power Network 
underwent rapid growth in the 1950s and 1960s. Many assets installed during this period 
remain in service today and are approaching the end of their notional lifespan.  

We are also seeing a dramatically changing demographic in Western Australia and the way 
people use electricity. At home and at work our customers want greater choice and control 
over their electricity supply, embracing solar technology and changing the way they consume 
electricity.  

Maintaining and replacing aging assets while keeping pace with this changing environment 
remains a challenge as we work to provide our customers with a safe, reliable and affordable 
supply of electricity now and into the future. 
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Network statistics 
 

The Western 
Power Network’s 
circuit length  

Transmission
Overhead 7,346 km

7,398 km  

97,644 km
Underground 52 km

Distribution 
Overhead 68,504 km

90,246 km 
Underground 21,743 km

Poles and towers 
Transmission 42,410  

801,357
Distribution 758,947 

 

Streetlights 237,674

 

Transmission 
Substations 

Terminal substations  26 
154

Zone substations 128 

 

Combined 
transformer 
capacity  

Total capacity bulk (terminal) power 
transformers 

7,299 MVA1

Total capacity sub-transmission (zone) 
power transformers 

8,121 MVA

Number of distribution transformers  65,828

Total capacity distribution transformers 8,704 MVA

Total energy transported on the South West Interconnected 
Network  

17,082 GWh2

SWIS peak generation 3,984 MW3

Energy lost during transmission and distribution (line losses) 5.97%

Western Power Network peak demand  3,611 MW

12 February 2013

 

NB: In December 2012, we completed a significant upgrade to our legacy asset management systems 
to a suite of new contemporary asset management systems. Minor data discrepancies may occur 
between the current reported figures and future reported figures for the 2012/2013 financial year. 

                                                            
1 MVA = Megavolt Ampere  
2 GWh = Gigawatt hour 
3 MW = Megawatt 
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OUR REGULATORY FRAMEWORK  

The Electricity Industry Act 2004 (the Act) provides for the operation of the Wholesale 
Electricity Market and the development of the Electricity Networks Access Code 2004. The 
Act grants the Economic Regulation Authority (ERA) responsibility for electricity industry 
licensing, access regime administration and electricity market surveillance. The Act also 
outlines the requirements for how we establish our Board and CEO, and the terms of our 
relationship to our Minister.  

The ERA is an independent body of the State Government that regulates Western Power 
from an economic perspective. The ERA ensures that, as a natural monopoly, Western 
Power provides an efficient and effective electricity distribution and transmission network 
service to customers.  

Western Power is also subject to regulation by other government agencies, such as 
EnergySafety and the Department of Environment Regulation (formerly part of the 
Department of Environment and Conservation).  

 

OUR PLACE IN THE ELECTRICITY SUPPLY CHAIN 

The price of electricity for residential and small business customers in Western Australia is 
set by the State Government. This price remains below the overall cost of supply, which is 
made up of many different elements including the cost of generation, transmission and 
distribution (i.e. networks) and retail.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Generators 
make electricity 
at power plants 

using a variety of 
fuel sources 

including gas, 
coal, diesel, the 

wind and the 
sun. 

The network or grid is made up of 
transmission assets (high voltage 

infrastructure such as large steel towers) 
and distribution assets (low voltage 

infrastructure such as suburban street 
power poles and conductors or wires). 

The network allows electricity to flow from 
generators to customers. 

Retailers manage 
the interface 
between the 
network and 

customers. They 
issue accounts and 
collect the revenue 
for the whole supply 

chain. 
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| OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL REVIEW 

SAFETY  
 
WORKFORCE SAFETY AND HEALTH  

As we go through a fundamental change, with a renewed focus on safety, we continue to 
develop our safety and health processes and behaviours in order to build a culture within 
which great performance is sustainable. 

During the year we improved our safety and health management arrangements and 
developed our leadership skills, in particular the processes associated with the management 
of incidents and hazards in the workplace. Subsequently, our reporting culture has improved; 
hazards and incidents are reported openly and managed effectively. 

We encourage all employees and contractors to be safety leaders and empower them to stop 
work if they consider it unsafe to proceed. At Western Power - if it’s not safe, we don't do it. 

Our performance against key indicators is showing improvement, with a notable drop in lost 
time injuries for our total workforce from 16 last year to eight this year. Our Lost Time Injury 
Frequency Rate (LTIFR4) has reduced to 0.8. 
 

LTIFR 

2007/08 4.3 

2008/09 2.7 

2009/10 2.6 

2010/11 1.9 

2011/12 1.6 

2012/13 0.8 

 

PUBLIC SAFETY 

The safety of our staff and the safety of the public is Western Power’s highest priority. 
Electricity by nature is hazardous and addressing potential safety risks on the network is a 
core focus for the business.  

Western Power’s Annual Works Program (AWP) is aimed at improving asset maintenance 
and replacement to reduce the likelihood of one of our assets failing. Western Power has 
replaced or reinforced a record number of wood poles over the past year as part of our 
continuous improvement of the network. Wood pole replacements and reinforcements have 
been prioritised in high and extreme fire risk areas.  

During the year, we recorded 147 public safety incidents. This equates to a rolling average of 
12.3 incidents per month compared to a rolling monthly target of less than 10.  

 

                                                            
4 Lost time incidents per million working hours 
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The table below shows the breakdown of the types of public safety incidents during 2012/13. 
 

Public safety incident type 

Fire or explosion caused by Western Power assets 79 

Vehicle, plant or equipment contact with Western Power Network 47 

Injury (requiring medical treatment) or death to people and animals 
from inadvertent contact with the Western Power Network 

12 

Injury (requiring medical treatment) from electric shock caused by 
the Western Power Network 

3 

EnergySafety Order or reported defect 6 

Total 147 

 

Lengthy hot periods over summer resulted in an increase in asset failure incidents, which 
meant the overall volume of incidents was higher than in previous years.  

The number of incidents in which a third party interfered or came into contact with the 
network was similar to the previous year, due to ongoing levels of construction related 
activity across WA.  

Of the 12 incidents resulting in injury or death caused by third parties contacting the network, 
there were eight people injured by receiving an electric shock or burn, and four incidents 
involving the death of animals. 

Western Power is committed to improving the public safety performance of the network and 
addressing potential risks before they arise.  

 
PUBLIC SAFETY CAMPAIGNS  

Education is an important component of staying safe. The Make the Safe Call community 
awareness campaign informs the public about the potential dangers of fallen powerlines. 
This campaign runs during times of the year when damage to our assets is more likely to 
occur as a result of storms and high winds.  

Make the Safe Call has successfully made a significant improvement in increasing public 
awareness and knowledge in relation to safety around fallen powerlines and that Western 
Power is the relevant authority to contact5.  This increased awareness cuts the time taken to 
respond to emergencies and therefore improves safety outcomes.  
 

                                                            
5 Source: IPSOS campaign research 
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CUSTOMERS 
 
CUSTOMER CONNECTIONS6 

 Distribution Transmission Total 

Residential 927,511 0 927,511

Small to medium enterprises (SME) 94,043 0 94,043

Large commercial  29,083 59 29,142

Generators  25 37 62

Total 1,050,662 96 1,050,758 

 

NEW CONNECTIONS  

We worked with the electrical contracting industry and EnergySafety to connect 23,993 new 
customers to the network in 2012/13. 

 

RESIDENTIAL PV SYSTEMS 

To enable customers to install solar photovoltaic (PV) systems on their roofs, we carried out 
30,567 meter changes during the year. This is 6.9 per cent less than in 2011/12. 

 

CUSTOMER SERVICE CENTRE 

Our customer service centre received more than 900,000 customer calls. Of these calls, 74 
per cent were from customers who were seeking information and assistance after losing 
power at their premises, with the remaining due to general customer network related 
enquiries. Our website also received more than 842,000 hits.  Many of these were from 
customers making use of our power interruption information tool. We are continually looking 
to improve our customer service and in June this year we launched a mobile friendly version 
of the power interruption information tool. 

 

COMPLAINTS  

We received 6647 complaints from customers who were not satisfied with the service they 
received from Western Power (down from 712 last year). We responded to 100 per cent of 
these within the required 15 days.  

The highest complaint category in 2012/13 was regarding infrastructure, which includes 
concerns about the impact to the community when we conduct work on network assets or the 
location of network assets.  

 

 

 

                                                            
6 The average number of customer connections to the Western Power Network during the 2012/13 financial year 
7 Excluding power quality and reliability enquiries, and letters to the ombudsman and Minister 
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DISABILITY ACCESS AND INCLUSION PLAN    

The year has seen the completion of our head office refurbishment, which has greatly 
improved disability accessibility. Ramps, wheelchair friendly bathrooms and wide security 
gates are key features.  

A diverse team from across the business has been brought together to review our Disability 
Access and Inclusion Plan in 2013/14.  

 

RELIABILITY  

We have refocused to recognise reliability as a core objective and fundamentally important to 
our customers. Our System Average Interruption Duration Index (SAIDI) performance8 was 
182 minutes. This was better than the 2012/13 target of 233 minutes and also four minutes 
or 10 per cent better than the 2011/12 result. This improvement was primarily due to a 
reduction in the number of interruptions caused by equipment failure due to external 
influences such as vehicles, vegetation and wind borne debris.  

In addition to SAIDI, network reliability performance is characterised by a suite of 
benchmarks relating to specific contexts and performance parameters. Performance against 
these is summarised in the table below.  

 

 Total number of 
benchmarks 

Number of benchmarks 
achieved 

Distribution network 9 8 

Transmission network 6 6 

 
The benchmark we did not achieve was the System Average Interruption Frequency Index 
(SAIFI), or frequency in the number of interruptions experienced by customers, on long rural 
feeders. This was primarily due to the abnormally high impact of lightning activity on this part 
of the distribution network. 

Detailed investigations and field analysis have commenced in a number of areas of the rural 
network focusing on the worst performing locations. These will assist in improving 
performance reliability for customers in these areas.  

 

CAPACITY  

Planning the network's development is essential for ensuring there is sufficient capacity to 
transmit electricity from generators to customers in a manner that is safe, reliable and 
affordable. 

This complex challenge requires a long-term approach. As part of our future planning, we 
perform detailed system/network studies for a variety of load and generation scenarios. The 
transmission (high voltage) network is planned with a ten-year outlook, supported by higher-

                                                            
8 This SAIDI measure is inclusive of transmission performance. Note: The June 2012 SAIDI measure of 177 
minutes, reported in the 2012 Annual Report, excluded transmission interruptions. This inclusive figure for June 
2012 is 186 minutes. Other exclusions (as also reported in previous years) include: planned interruptions from 
third party equipment such as generation and customer equipment and all interruptions associated with Major 
Event Days of which there were four - three due to widespread storm activity and one due to widespread numbers 
of pole-top fires. 
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level strategies looking 25 years into the future. In contrast, detailed planning of the 
distribution (low voltage) network takes place with a five year timeframe due to its more 
dynamic characteristics. 

Development plans for both the transmission and distribution networks must consider a 
diverse range of factors. These include technical rules governing network performance 
(administered by the ERA), load and generation forecasts, asset management plans, 
commercial objectives and funding levels. 

This planning approach allows us to identify the most cost effective and efficient balance for 
meeting growing demand, while maintaining the network’s reliability and security.  

Without adequate preparation, the connection of large customers or generators of electricity 
can have a significant impact on network performance. All connection applications of this 
type are assessed carefully to ensure that reliable and secure supply is maintained for both 
new and existing customers. 
 

ANNUAL PLANNING REPORT (APR) 

The APR informs participants in the wholesale electricity market and interested community 
members about our development plans and emerging network capacity constraints. In 
discussing these issues and the factors considered in addressing them, the APR provides 
stakeholders with an insight into our planning activities, as well as creating an opportunity for 
dialogue. A copy of the latest APR can be found on our website. 
 

APPROVED WORKS PROGRAM (AWP) 

The AWP details the complete schedule of works for the year, including all capital 
expenditure (network enhancement to increase capacity) and operational expenditure 
(maintenance and reliability improvements) for transmission and distribution projects. 

This year’s AWP comprised 721 projects, including substation construction, new customer 
connections and our Summer Ready maintenance schedule. 

One key milestone was the commissioning of a program of new transmission transformers at 
the Joondalup, Waikiki, Southern River and Marriot Road zone substations by November 
2012. This program of works will increase capacity and security of supply in some of the 
metropolitan high growth areas. 
 

INVESTING IN THE NETWORK  

Western Power continues to invest at an increasing rate in network augmentation and 
maintenance programs to improve the safety, reliability and capacity of the network.  

We replaced or reinforced a record number of poles over the past year. Wood pole 
replacements increased by 12 per cent to 17,432 over the past year, while wood pole 
reinforcements surged 96 per cent to a total of 48,479.  

Many of our assets installed in the 1950s and 1960s remain in service today and are 
approaching the end of their nominal lifespan. As our infrastructure ages and assets 
deteriorate the network becomes more susceptible to failure. The failure of assets has the 
potential to cause service disruption and/or impact safety performance. We have increased 
our workload over the last year to improve the condition of the network.    
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Wood poles have been, and will continue to be, a key focus of investment and during the 
year we focused on addressing the highest risk wood poles.  

We have also replaced 279 kilometres of overhead conductor and will be increasing this over 
the AA3 period. During the year, 3,066 kilometres of streetlight switchwire was removed. All 
remaining streetlight switchwire will be removed in the 2013/14 period.  

We also upgraded 54,252 overhead customer service connections during 2012/13.  

The State Underground Power Project was a key contributor to the removal of aged 
overhead conductor and service connections throughout the Perth metropolitan region. More 
than 54 per cent of the network in the Perth Metro area is now underground. Suburbs 
undergrounded this year were Salter Point, Ashfield and Coolbellup.  

The table below shows the major activities undertaken on the network during the year in 
comparison to previous years. 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

The continuation of these and other work programs is expected to contribute towards 
improving reliability performance objectives over the 12 months to June 2014.  
 

                                                            
9 Older overhead service connections used preformed steel wire helical terminations, known as twisties 

 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 

Wood pole 
inspections 

Distribution 162,568 173,876 169,519 

Transmission 8,615 9,198 8,125 

Total 171,183 183,074 177,644 

Wood pole reinforcements 11,421 24,643 48,479 

Wood pole replacements 12,633 15,512 17,432 

Overhead customer service 
connection replacements 
(‘twisties’9) 

42,062 56,207 54,252 

Overhead conductor replacements 82 km 117 km 279 km 

Streetlight switchwire removed 159 km 1,268 km 3,066 km 
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MAJOR INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS  
 
We are undertaking a number of major projects to maintain average historical reliability for 
customers into the future and to facilitate the development of the State. 
 
MID WEST ENERGY PROJECT 

The Mid West Energy Project (MWEP) is one of the largest public infrastructure projects 
currently underway in WA. The MWEP southern section connects Neerabup (on Perth’s 
northern outskirts) to Three Springs (a distance of 280 kilometres) with a 330 kilovolt (kV) 
double circuit transmission line (one circuit operated at 132 kV). This will enable the 
connection of a number of mining projects in the Mid West (including Karara Mine) and 
provide additional support to the existing 132 kV network in the region by establishing a new 
330/132 kV terminal substation at Three Springs. 

MWEP will provide the capacity to meet increasing demand for electricity and facilitate the 
connection of power generators and loads to the network between Nerrabup and Three 
Springs. This will strengthen the reliability and security of the network. 

Works on MWEP are progressing on schedule and to budget.  

Vegetation clearing and the construction of access tracks have been completed, starting 
after extensive planning and one-to-one landowner engagement activities, which has been 
ongoing since 2004. 

Foundations and tower assembly from Regans Ford to Cataby are complete and the first 
conductors have been installed. Foundations and tower assembly is also well advanced from 
Cataby to Eneabba.  

Construction in the Pinjar to Regans Ford section is planned to commence in September, 
and energisation of the line is due to occur, as planned, in the second quarter of 2014. 

Planning and investigation for the MWEP northern section linking Three Springs with 
Geraldton is underway.  

 
MEDICAL CENTRE ZONE SUBSTATION  

This project will construct a new zone substation to provide power to the State Government’s 
Queen Elizabeth II (QE II) Medical Centre redevelopment. It is the second largest project 
currently being undertaken by Western Power.  

A new 66/11 kV substation will be constructed on land next to the existing 66/6.6 kV 
substation. It will initially operate at 66 kV but later be operated at 132 kV as part of an 
investment program in the western suburbs. 

The project forms part of the Western Terminal 25 year strategy for the western suburbs area 
of Perth and is a unique combination of customer driven work and capacity expansion.  

The target completion date is June 2014 to meet the QE II Medical Centre requirement and 
to integrate with our wider network investment strategy in the area.  

Community engagement commenced in November 2011 and consisted of two facilitated 
workshops held with key stakeholders and affected landowners.  
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SHENTON PARK ZONE SUBSTATION 

This project will see construction of a new 132/11 kV zone substation on land next to the 
existing 66/6.6 kV Shenton Park Substation. The new substation will supply customers 
currently supplied by Herdsman Parade Substation enabling the retirement of both the 
existing aging substations at Shenton Park and Herdsman Parade, as well as providing 
capacity for forecast future development. 

The project also forms part of the Western Terminal 25 year strategy for the western suburbs 
of Perth. Construction of the new Shenton Park Substation will be completed by April 2016 
with the retirement of the existing Shenton Park and Herdsman Parade substations by 
November 2018.  

Four community sessions were held from 2011 to 2013 to capture key concerns with the 
substation upgrade. Based on community input, landscaping designs were developed to 
minimise the impact associated with the project, resulting in a successful Development 
Application approval. 

 

CBD LONG-TERM DEVELOPMENT PLAN  

During the year, we produced the CBD long-term network development plan to guide the 
development of Perth CBD and East Perth transmission and distribution networks over the 
next 25 years. The plan identifies a number of investments that will be required over the next 
decade, which will be managed as a program of works, with a few works in the following 15 
year period. The plan was the subject of a wide stakeholder engagement process before 
being approved in March 2013.  

The first project in the CBD program of works is to establish a transmission connection 
between the existing Hay Street and Milligan Street substations. These works are currently in 
the early development phase and are expected to be completed in 2016/17. 

We met with key stakeholders including local councils and transport authorities to share the 
25 year plan, and more specifically the expected works program for the next 10 years.  
These meetings were used to identify potential opportunities and constraints that may impact 
the program of work. In addition to stakeholder meetings, a range of businesses from across 
different sectors were invited to a stakeholder forum with attendees from local government, 
regulators, service industries, government departments and property developers. 

 

COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT  

Western Power’s activities take place in geographic areas internationally recognised as 
having unique environmental values. 

Our Environmental Policy outlines our commitment to minimise impact on this precious 
environment. During the year more than 300 employees have attended an internal 
Environmental Policy training session. A new online version of the Environmental 
Management System was also made available, which included a new operational work 
instruction on fauna and made substantial updates to the processes for handling leaking oil 
filled equipment. An audit program is in place to provide assurance of the Environmental 
Management System. 
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We have an Environmentally Sensitive Area program in place to proactively manage our 
impact in areas that require unique and special protection. We now have a total of 357 
Environmentally Sensitive Areas, with 18 new sites registered over the year. These 18 sites 
include areas containing declared rare flora, threatened ecological communities, Aboriginal 
heritage sites and organic farms. 

Substations, depots and leaking distribution ‘padmount’ transformers account for the majority 
Western Power’s contaminated sites. The total number of sites reported to the Department of 
Environment Regulation to date is 101. This includes two new sites reported and classified 
during 2012/13. There were five historical high risk sites investigated and 13 historical sites 
classified or reclassified during the year. Western Power has a program in place to address 
our regulatory obligations in relation to contaminated sites. 

 

LAND ACCESS 

The Western Power Network passes through a large number of private properties. To ensure 
the safe and reliable operation of the network, our employees and contractors often have to 
enter private property. 

As a result of customer feedback, a cross-business land access working group was 
established to improve the way private property is accessed, particularly in rural areas.  

During the year a campaign commenced highlighting the work practices to be followed when 
accessing private property. Communications at our depots have reinforced the message. 
Staff and contractors working in regional areas are now asked to contact the local Western 
Power depot ahead of work taking place to obtain any important local information and advice. 
Initiatives for further improvements are planned for 2013/14.  

 

NOISE MITIGATION 

Our noise mitigation program for transmission transformers has been developed in 
consultation with the Department of Environment Regulation. Two substations are currently 
being upgraded to reduce noise impacts and future work is planned at other sites to comply 
with our approval.  

 

PERTH AND PEEL SUBREGIONAL STRUCTURE PLANS AND STRATEGIC 
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT  

Western Power is providing input into the Department of Planning's 'Perth and Peel  
Sub-Regional Structure Plans' and the Department of the Premier and Cabinet’s ‘Strategic 
Assessment of Perth and Peel’. Future electrical transmission infrastructure requirements to 
support growth across the State have been provided and this information will be used to 
assess the environmental impact of projects on a regional scale that would otherwise require 
piecemeal assessment.  

 

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT  

During the year, 25 community engagement sessions were held – including four Aboriginal 
heritage engagement sessions. 

265 members of the community attended engagement sessions on 13 different projects, from 
metropolitan to regional areas across the network. 
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA 

Indicator Description 2012-13 Unit 

Reportable Incidents 

 
Notification of significant incidents to 
environmental regulators 

6 number of incidents 

Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions10 

Scope 1  

tonnes, carbon 
dioxide equivalent 

fuel consumption 15,700 
Ravensthorpe power station 1,200 
mobile generators 500 
sulphur hexafluoride gas 5,500 
waste water treatment 200 
(Subtotal) 23,100 

Scope 2  
network losses 865,400 
purchased electricity 15,900 
streetlights 98,500 
(Subtotal) 979,800 

Total 1,002,900 

Native Vegetation11 

 

Clearing of native vegetation  

hectares 

areas of biodiversity value 4712 
non-significant vegetation 2.2 
Total 49.2 

Land purchase offset 918 
Committed re-vegetation offsets 0 

Contaminated Sites13 

 

New sites reported under Contaminated 
Sites Act 2003 

2 
number of sites Investigative works 5 

Site remediation works 1 
 

 
COMMUNITY INVESTMENTS  

As the supplier of an essential service to the community, Western Power proudly supports 
organisations and initiatives that make a difference to people served by the Western Power 
Network. Current partner organisations include the Royal Life Saving Society of Western 
Australia, the Bibbulmun Track Foundation, Scitech and Clontarf. 

During the year we delivered important safety and energy efficiency messages to 30,689 pre-
school and primary school students. Our Education Presenters visited schools to teach 
children about how electricity works and how to stay safe around electricity both inside and 
outside the home. The program also provides children with information about how the 
network operates and energy efficient tips to help reduce consumption, particularly during 
times of peak use. 

                                                            
10 Greenhouse gas emissions are preliminary figures prepared at the time of compiling this report. 
11 Total area of native vegetation cleared excludes maintenance of vegetation around existing assets. Land 
purchase offset is to be used as a vegetation offset for future projects. 
12 The majority of 2012/13 native vegetation clearance was for the Mid West Energy Project southern section 
13 The contaminated site that had remedial works undertaken was one of the two sites reported under the 
Contaminated Sites Act 2003. 
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PEOPLE  
 
At Western Power we recognise that culture drives performance outcomes. That is why we 
are working to develop the right culture to meet present and future challenges. This includes 
attracting, retaining and recognising quality people who are committed to striving for 
excellence.  

 

ORGANISATIONAL HEALTH (Pulse) 

Our annual Pulse survey is an opportunity for employees to tell us how they feel about 
working at Western Power. The results allow us to gauge the overall organisational health of 
our business.  

The 2013 survey was conducted in June with 2,427 employees and embedded contractors 
taking part. This represented 65 per cent of our workforce, down from 81.5 per cent (3,051) 
in 2012. The 2012/13 overall result for the Organisational Health Indicator of 73 per cent fell 
short of our 2013 target of 77 per cent.  

 
WORKFORCE NUMBERS 

 2011/12 2012/13 

Number of employees (headcount)14 3,276 3,421 

Number of embedded contractors  449 305 

Total  3,725 3,726 

 
 

EMPLOYEE STATISTICS 

 2011/12 2012/13 

Number of new starters in 2012/13 581 434 

Employee turnover (annualised employee initiated) 9.5% 7.3% 

Percentage of employees covered by collective 
bargaining agreements 

48% 48% 

Absenteeism15 3.6% 3.7% 

 

                                                            
14 Includes casual workers 
15 Calculated by the amount of hours employees were available to work during the period divided by the amount 
of unplanned leave hours (sickness, workers comp, industrial disputes, carers leave, special leave and 
bereavement).  
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY WORK STREAM 

Business support 407

Formal leadership 346

Operational 1,269

Professional - Engineering 578

Professional - Other 821

Total 3,421

 
DIVERSITY STATISTICS 

 

Headcount 
Male Female Voluntarily self-reported 

Indigenous Disability 

Board Directors 5 1 0 0 

Extended Management 
Team (including CEO) 

42 6 0 1 

Managers and 
supervisors 

247 51 2 3 

Professional employees 1,049 350 2 13 

Business support 
employees 

85 322 3 7 

Operational employees 1,262 7 17 18 

Total 2,690 737 24 42 

3,427 

 
EMPLOYEE REWARD AND RECOGNITION 

The Bright Sparks Awards are our way of recognising and rewarding the extraordinary efforts 
of our employees (individual or teams) who help us reach our strategic goals by displaying 
our six values. 

Bright Sparks Award  2012/13 Annual Award Winners 

Put safety first   Bruce Turner and Neil Simmonds 

Respect our customers Philip Mitchell 

Work together  Frank Lane and Brian Logue 

Make a positive difference  Jo-Ann Flood 

Earn trust Robert Godfrey 

Act like it’s our own business Clive Dalton 
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
Our financial performance this year reflects several key achievements in the face of the 
economic challenges to improve our financial outcomes while providing a safe and reliable 
service to customers at an affordable price. 2012/13 was a year where strong improvements 
were made building a platform for efficiencies and recognising there is a need to further 
improve affordability for our customers going forward. The following points summarise our 
performance for the year.  

 Cash flow for the year was negative $713.3 million increasing borrowing levels to 
$6.19 billion. 

 Total energy consumption increased by 1.4 per cent in 2012/13.  

 Operating costs finished the year $53 million lower than last year and met the ERA 
target, which incorporated efficiency requirements.  

 Net profit after tax (NPAT) was $191 million, 22 per cent higher than the previous 
year driven by efficiency initiatives, which has reduced operating expenditure. 

 Normalised net profit after tax was $93 million, 52 per cent higher than the previous 
year again driven by efficiency initiatives, which have reduced operating expenditure.  

 Discretionary spending across the business reduced by 33 per cent compared to the 
previous year.  

 Effective debt portfolio management and movement in market interest rates resulted 
in a lower weighted average cost of debt than 2011/12.  

 Return on assets was 2.5 per cent, a slight rise on the previous year, reflecting higher 
net profit after tax. 

 Capital investment was $1.05 billion, 17 per cent higher than the previous year, 
delivering to target and meeting the challenges set by both the ERA and State 
Government.   



GOVERNANCE AND F INANC IAL  REPO RTS  

WESTER N POWER ANNUAL  REPO RT 2013  

26  

PROFIT 

 

Our net profit after tax (NPAT) was $191.4 million, 21 per cent higher than the previous year 
driven by efficiency initiatives lowering operating expenditure. Profit is distributed to the State 
Government by way of tax and dividend payments, which increased to $102 million in 
2012/13, up 20 per cent, enabling the State to invest in other services.  

Energy volumes decreased revenue by $7 million driven by reduced consumption per 
residential customer.  

Distribution tariffs increased by an average of 5.3 per cent in 2012/13 driving the net 
revenue increase from last year while transmission tariffs decreased by an average of 1.2 
per cent in 2012/13.  

Reflected in cost inflation are labour rate increases and the consumer price index impact on 
operational costs compared to the last year. 

We achieved spending efficiencies of $50 million following a business-wide directive to 
reduce spending on discretionary items and a number of operational efficiency initiatives and 
process improvements.  

Depreciation and interest increased 13 per cent compared to the prior year in line with an 
increased trend in capital investment and increased borrowing levels.  

Tax increased 14 per cent on prior year as a result of increased earnings before tax. 

 
NORMALISED PROFIT  

It is important to note that NPAT as a profitability measure overstates our performance due to 
the inclusion of gifted assets from developers and customer contributions.  As required by 
the applicable account standard (AASB Interpretation 18 – Transfers of Assets from 
Customers) these contributions are immediately recognised as revenue.  The normalised 
profit measure, which removes the impact of these contributions, was $93 million in 2012/13.. 
Of this, approximately $39 million was derived from residential customers or, on average, 
$42 per residential customer per year.  
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Reconciliation of statutory profit to normalised profit ($ million) 

 2011/12 2012/13 

Net Profit After Tax (NPAT) 157 191 

Capital Contribution Revenue 170 177 

Less Depreciation16 33 37 

Profit before tax 137 140 

Less Tax expense 41 42 

Adjustment to NPAT from Capital Contributions 96 98 

Normalised Net Profit After Tax 61 93 

 

 

 

The improvement in normalised profit reflects the increase in network tariffs over the last four 
years. Capital investment in 2013/13 was $1.05 billion, more than ten times higher than 
normalised profit in the year. 

 

REVENUE 

Regulated network tariffs account for approximately 83 per cent of our revenue. A further 12 
per cent relates to non-cash contributions (infrastructure gifted by developers upon 
connecting to the network) and cash contributions for network augmentation not shared by 
tariff customers. The remaining five per cent relates to unregulated activities such as the 
sale of materials to third parties.  

Total energy consumption increased by 1.4 per cent during 2012/13.   

As shown in the graph below, despite an increase in our residential customer base over the 
last five years of 12 per cent, over the same period there has been a decrease in energy 
consumption per residential customer of nine per cent. This decrease has been as a result of 

                                                            
16 Depreciation is estimated based on all developer and customer contributions received since 1999 depreciated 
over 50 years. 
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a range of factors including the success of energy efficiency community education, higher 
electricity prices, the increased use of energy efficient appliances and the continued uptake 
of solar PV systems. 

 

 

Distribution tariffs will increase 5.3 per cent in 2013/14 predominantly to recover the $95 
million revenue shortfall experienced in 2012/13 related to lower consumption and $55 
million increase in 2013/14 of the Tariff Equalisation Contribution (TEC)17. 
 

OPERATIONAL COSTS 

As revenue in any particular year is largely fixed, cost control becomes the primary lever for 
delivering an improved financial return within an access arrangement period.  

The year-on-year operating expenditure mix has not changed materially with 24 per cent 
focused on network safety programs and 42 per cent spent on corrective and preventative 
network maintenance. 

Operating costs finished the year $53 million lower than last year and importantly met the 
ERA target which incorporated efficiency requirements. This was due to business-led 
efficiency initiatives, cost reduction actions taken by management and lower levels of storm 
activity that had a favourable impact on fault repair expenses. Discretionary spending across 
the business saw a 33 per cent reduction compared to the previous year. 

This net improvement in operating costs was achieved, despite increasing customer driven 
services and directing more resources to support the streetlight switchwire removal program.  

 

 

 

                                                            
17 The TEC is an amount of revenue Western Power is obliged to collect from customers within the SWIS 
connected to the Western Power Network, in order to subsidise regional customers outside the SWIS that are 
served by Horizon Power. The TEC amount is determined by Government and is passed through to Horizon 
Power. It ensures all Western Australians, no matter where they are situated geographically in the State, pay the 
same electricity tariff.  
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CASH FLOW HIGHLIGHTS 

 

 $ million 

 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13

1. Net cash from operating activities 162.3 267.4 749.4 701.2 726.6

2. Net interest paid 210.4 239.7 269.4 270.1 278.9

3. Net capital investment 924.5 785.3 696.0 794.5 1,020.1

4. Net borrowings 809.1 753.0 336.5 457.7 713.3

 

Our compounded annual growth rate of cash from operating activities is 35 per cent over the 
last five years.  This result has primarily been driven by regulated tariff increases and cost 
efficiencies over the same period.  We are a net borrower, which is primarily to support our 
network investment, with capital expenditure growth of 18 per cent compared to last year.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In 2012/13 more than five times NPAT was invested in the network for a net borrowing 
increase compared to last year of $713, million bringing total borrowings18 to $6.19 billion. 
Weighted average cost of the debt portfolio decreased to 5.35 per cent at 30 June 2013, a 
reduction from prior year by 0.39 per cent. 
 

                                                            
18  Total borrowings and borrowing costs include accrued investment  
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ASSETS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our commitment to achieving customer satisfaction through a safe and reliable network has 
driven the continuing trend in non-growth investment with the five year compounded annual 
growth rate for asset replacement and other sustaining programs at 11.8 per cent and a 
reduction in growth investment of 7.2 per cent over the same period. 

Return on assets (net profit after tax divided by average total assets) was 2.5 per cent in 
2012/13 and has increased over the last four years in line with the move towards cost 
reflectivity and greater efficiency. 

During the year we continued to deliver our capital works program, which is focused on 
improving public safety, facilitating State growth by connecting new customers, maintaining 
service standards and providing a secure electricity supply.   

We replaced or reinforced a record number of wood poles and exceeded targets in our 
largest ever works program and also experienced higher investment than target due to 
higher unit rates for the prioritisation of replacements for those poles in high risk areas and 
geographically challenging locations. 

The ramp up of wood pole replacements and reinforcements is an example of effectiveness 
through improved planning and execution of the works program with a better outcome on 
safety and reliability whilst appreciating work is ongoing to further improve affordability for our 
customers.    
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REGULATION  
 

ACCESS ARRANGEMENT  

The 2012/13 financial year saw the ERA approve our access arrangement for the period 1 
July 2012 to 30 June 2017 (known as the AA3 period). 

As part of Western Power’s access arrangement submission and approvals process, the 
ERA undertakes a rigorous review of our forecast expenditure.  The process ensures that 
there is a demonstrable need for the investment proposed by Western Power and the 
investment is efficient.   

On 30 September 2011, we submitted our AA3 application for $11.3 billion in revenue based 
on estimates of future investment required. On 29 November 2012, the ERA released its 
further final decision on Western Power’s proposed revisions to the access arrangement with 
a commencement date of 1 February 2013.   

The ERA determined a real post tax Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) for the AA3 
period of 3.60 per cent, which is significantly lower than the equivalent real post tax WACC 
for AA2 of 7.49 per cent and that proposed by Western Power for AA3.  The lower WACC is 
the consequence of a change in the ERA’s WACC methodology and the historical low 
interest rate environment.  The financial impact of the lower WACC is considerably lower 
revenue for the forecast period. 

The ERA determined that the total revenue for the AA3 period is set at $7.5 billion. Under the 
current regulatory framework this represents the total allowable revenue that Western Power 
will earn through network tariffs.  In determining this level of revenue the ERA introduced 
significant efficiency reductions to Western Power’s proposed expenditure, which represents 
a major challenge.  

The access arrangement prescribes both service performance targets and network tariffs 
that are efficient and consistent with the principles defined in the Electricity Networks Access 
Code 2004.  

During our considerations of the ERA’s final decision on the access arrangement, on the 19 
September 2012 the Minister for Energy, Hon. Peter Collier MLC directed Western Power not 
to appeal the ERA’s final decision. 

Variation to the access arrangement 

On 4 June 2013, the ERA published its decision to vary our access arrangement to address 
the price impacts contained in Western Power’s 2013/14 price list submission provided to the 
ERA for approval on 26 April 2013. The price list was prepared in accordance with the price 
control formula contained in the ERA approved access arrangement and included average 
tariff increases of around 20 per cent.  

The increase was driven by an increase in the Tariff Equalisation Contribution (TEC, an 
amount levied on users of the Western Power distribution network which is provided to 
Horizon Power to provide electricity services at a uniform tariff across the State), which is set 
by the State Government, combined with an adjustment for lower than expected revenue in 
2012/13 due to lower than forecast energy demand during the year. 

The regulatory framework requires Western Power to annually ‘true up’ revenue at the end of 
each financial year through a price adjustment in the subsequent year known as the ‘k-
factor’. Typically, this creates an annual cash flow risk, for revenue shortfalls, that Western 
Power manages through additional short term debt funding as was the case in 2012/13.   
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The ERA variation to the access arrangement restricted average network price increases to 
approximately 2.3 per cent plus CPI over the AA3 period. This will result in a further increase 
in Western Power debt of $243 million over the AA3 period. Target revenue for the AA3 
period was reduced to $7.18 billion.  

Our challenge is now to continue to deliver the commitments made for AA3 and to continue 
to provide customers with a safe, reliable and affordable electricity supply with this reduced 
funding level.   

 

 

COMPLIANCE  

Pursuant to our obligations under our distribution and transmission operating licenses we 
provided three licence audit reports to the ERA in January 2013. The performance audit and 
the asset management system review audit concluded that we had introduced appropriate 
policies, systems and processes to address the issues identified during the previous audits.  

The auditors concluded that consultation with our employees revealed a continuously 
improving awareness of compliance requirements. The auditors acknowledged that we have 
a strong commitment to planning, risk analysis and compliance monitoring.  

As a result of the positive findings, the ERA closed the section 32 notice19 it had previously 
issued.  

                                                            
19 A section 32 notice is a notice issued by the ERA pursuant to the enforcement provisions within the Electricity 
Industry Act 2004. A notice is issued when a licensee contravenes or fails to comply with a requirement of the 
license. The notice requires the licensee to rectify the contravention or non-compliance. Failure to comply with the 
notice can result in a letter of reprimand, a pecuniary penalty (up to $100,000) and/or an order to rectify. 
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2012/13 KPI PERFORMANCE 
 

Indicator description 
2012/13 
TARGET 

2012/13 
ACTUAL 

Safety 

Lost Time Injury Frequency Rate 
(LTIFR) 

≤  2 0.8 

Public safety incidents (per month) < 10 12.3 

Number of wood poles replaced and 
reinforced 

≥  62,800 65,911 

Total expenditure of the pole 
management program in 2012/1320 

≤  $187M $248.9M 

Service Standards 
System Average Interruption 
Duration Index (SAIDI)21 

≤  233 182 

Customer Charter 
Compliance 

Charter compliance > 90% 96% 

Financial Return on assets >  3.9% 2.5% 

Works Program 

Total cost reductions on major 
projects 

≥  2.5% -1.2% 

Major work projects delivered over 
schedule 

≤  5% 4.5% 

Mid West Energy Project (stage 1) 
330 kV line energised on schedule 

≤  June 2014 On track 

Culture Organisational health ≥  77 73 

 

                                                            
20 Efficiency of the pole management program is measured by both the delivery of the volumes of wood poles 
replaced and reinforced as well as expenditure on the pole management program. If less expenditure occurs, we 
should still be achieving the required number of wood poles replaced and reinforced. If greater volumes are 
required and justified, this could support greater expenditure. 
21 Western Power proposed in its AA3 submission that SAIDI measures used in AA2 be modified for AA3 to 
include distribution and transmission interruptions experienced by distribution-connected customers. During AA2, 
SAIDI only measured the interruptions on the distribution network. Interruptions on the transmission network were 
excluded even when these events were within Western Power’s control. 
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STRATEGY 

Over the past 12 months, we developed a new five year corporate strategy. The strategy is a 
considered response to the challenges and opportunities facing Western Power both today 
and into the future.  

Our strategy can be broken down into three key elements: our orientation, purpose and 
objectives. These are all supported by a number of strategic themes, which contain the 
activities we will undertake to achieve the strategy. 

Orientation 

Our new strategy is built around our orientation of ‘serving customers.’ This means we are 
committed to providing excellent customer service and maintaining strong customer 
relationships – considering the impact on our customers in all our business decisions.  

Purpose  

We exist to provide a service to customers – connecting people with electricity. This is our 
purpose and is what our customers expect of us.  

Objectives 

Our objectives are to ensure the service we provide to customers is safe, reliable and 
affordable. These objectives are clear and go to the heart of what is important to our 
customers 

Strategic themes 

We will focus on six strategic themes to achieve our strategic direction of providing a safe, 
reliable and affordable connection to electricity. These themes cover the following: 

1. Improving the performance of key operational processes to reduce expenditure while 
improving the customer experience. 

2. Establishing a culture and capability within the organisation that is oriented toward 
consistently meeting customer expectations and continually improving business 
performance. 

3. Delivering a consistent, fit for purpose, acceptable customer service standard. 

4. Improving the efficiency and effectiveness of asset management practices to achieve 
agreed levels of network performance at the lowest possible cost. 

5. Improving business processes and commercial practices to make the most of every dollar 
we spend, thinking critically about our expenditure and asking ourselves if it is necessary 
to achieve our objectives. 

6. Working with the many stakeholders within the electricity industry to improve the 
affordability of electricity and deliver better customer outcomes. 

Work on these themes will continue over the next four years with the focus for 2013/14 being 
on implementing a new business operating model and organisation structure to drive greater 
efficiency across business processes.   
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

The directors of Electricity Networks Corporation trading as Western Power (Western Power) present this report in accordance with 
Schedule 4, clause 6, of the Electricity Corporations Act (Act).

Western Power’s directors 
The following persons were directors of Western Power during the financial year ended 30 June 2013 and up to the date of this report:

Name Duration

Alan Mulgrew (Board Chair) From 21/08/2012 
John Cahill (Board Deputy Chair) From 01/08/2009 
George Cash From 27/07/2010 
Mervyn Davies From 01/04/2006 
Paul Underwood  From 25/05/2009 
Sue Wilson From 28/12/2012 

Information on directors 

Legend

NED = Non-executive director 
F&RC = Finance & Risk Committee 
P&PC = People & Performance Committee 

Director Experience
Committee 
responsibilities 

Alan Mulgrew 
Board Chair 

Year of birth: 1946 

Independent, NED 

BA (UQ) 
GAICD
P/Grad (Fin/Strat) 
Justice of the Peace 

Appointed with effect from 21/08/2012, current term expires on 20/08/2015. Appointed 
as Board Chair with effect from 21/08/2012. 

Experience and expertise 
Mr Mulgrew served for 30 years as a senior executive heading up large capital intensive 
organisations, both in Australia and overseas - including Perth and Sydney airports. 

On establishing his own corporate advisory company, Mr Mulgrew has provided 
strategic advice to numerous major institutions; primarily in development and 
implementation of major infrastructure projects. 

Mr Mulgrew has been Chairman and a non-executive director of a number of high profile 
boards spanning transportation, energy, mining, infrastructure and government. 
Previous directorships include Western Carbon, WA Tourism, Australian Renewable 
Fuels, Western Power Corporation and Sydney Airport (interim Board). 

Current directorships: Non-executive director of Adelaide Airport Ltd (since 
September 2006), Tesla Corporation Pty Ltd (since August 2008), and Queensland 
Airports Limited (since March 2013). 

P&PC member 

John Cahill 
Board Deputy Chair 

Year of birth: 1956 

Independent, NED 

B.Bus
GradDipBus 
FCPA
GAICD

Appointed with effect from 01/08/2009, current term expires on 31/07/2014. Appointed 
as Board Deputy Chair with effect from 27/07/2010. 

Experience and expertise 
Mr Cahill has more than 25 years’ experience working in the energy utility sector in the 
areas of finance, treasury, accounting and risk management. He was the Chief 
Executive Officer of Alinta Infrastructure Holdings Ltd between 2005 and February 2007 
and prior to that, he was the Chief Financial Officer of Alinta Ltd and its predecessors 
from 1994. 

Current directorships: Non-executive director of Emeco Holdings Ltd (since 
September 2008 - also Chair of its Audit & Risk Committee), CPA Australia Ltd (since 
October 2007 - also President and Chair), a member of the Edith Cowan University 
(ECU) Council (since August 2011 - also Chair of its Resources Committee), and a 
member of the ECU Foundation Board (since January 2011). 

F&RC Chair 
P&PC member 

Hon. George Cash 
AM 

Year of birth: 1946 

Independent, NED 

LLB (Hons) 
LLM
B.Bus
FCSA
FCIS

Appointed with effect from 27/07/2010, current term expired on 26/07/2013.  In 
accordance with the Act, Mr Cash remains in office until either he resigns or is replaced. 

Experience and expertise 
Hon. George Cash was a member of the Western Australian Parliament for nearly 25 
years. He is a former Minister for Mines; Minister for Lands; Minister assisting the 
Minister for Public Sector Management; Minister assisting the Minister for Resources 
Development; Leader of the Government in the Legislative Council and President of the 
Legislative Council. 

He is also a former Chair of the Australian and New Zealand Minerals and Energy 
Council.

Current directorships: Not currently a director of any other entity. 

P&PC Chair 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Legend

NED = Non-executive director 
F&RC = Finance & Risk Committee 
P&PC = People & Performance Committee 

Director Experience
Committee 
responsibilities 

Mervyn Davies 

Year of birth: 1944 

Independent, NED 

B.E (Hons) 
M.Eng.Sc
B.Comm

Appointed with effect from 01/04/2006, current term expires on 20/08/2014. 

Experience and expertise 
Mr Davies has worked in all areas of electricity distribution and has extensive 
experience in managing both the financial and technical performance of the business. 
He has held senior management positions at Energy Australia, Australia’s largest 
electricity distribution company. Since leaving Energy Australia, Mr Davies has 
established and operated an engineering consultancy practice, specialising in electricity 
distribution system management. He has worked for electricity distributors in New South 
Wales and Queensland, the Independent Pricing and Regulatory Tribunal in NSW and 
for the Australian Competition and Consumer Commission. He also served as a non-
executive director of the former Western Power Corporation. 

Current directorships: Non-executive director of ENERGEX Limited (since July 2012) 
and Aurora Energy Pty Ltd (since November 2010).  Director of Anrig Pty Ltd (since 
March 2004 - also Board Chair), and Girna Engineering Management Services Pty Ltd 
(since December 1983 - also Board Chair). 

F&RC member 

Paul Underwood 

Year of birth: 1955 

Independent, NED 

B.Bus
ACA
GradDipAppFin 

Appointed with effect from 25/05/2009, current term expires on 20/08/2015. 

Experience and expertise 
Mr Underwood is a chartered accountant with over 30 years’ experience in chartered 
accounting, corporate advisory and oil and gas exploration/production. He was the 
founding Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of Tap Oil Limited, an oil and 
gas exploration and production company supplying gas to power generators in Western 
Australia. He has considerable experience in the Western Australian energy markets. 
Mr Underwood was also a Board member of the Australian Petroleum Producers 
Association between 1998 and 2006, an industry representation group engaged with 
government on energy policy matters. He is currently executive Chair of Triple Energy 
Ltd, an oil and gas company listed on the Australian Stock Exchange. 

In 2003, Mr Underwood won the Ernst and Young Entrepreneur of the Year Award for 
Western Australia. 

Current directorships: Executive director of Triple Energy Ltd (since February 2012 - 
also Board Chair). 

F&RC member 

Susan Wilson 

Year of birth: 1960 

Independent, NED 
B Juris 
LLB
FAICD
FCSA

Appointed with effect from 28/12/2012, current term expires on 27/12/2015. 

Experience and expertise 

Ms Wilson is an experienced board director, having held positions as a non-executive 
director of the former Western Power Corporation, executive director of Bankwest and 
Chair of the WA Optometrists Board.  She has particular expertise in strategy, 
stakeholder management including dealing with regulators and government, legal and 
governance.  She had a successful career in the finance industry as a senior executive 
at Bankwest and HBOS Australia. 

Current directorships: A member of the Curtin University Council (since May 2013 - 
also member of its Audit & Risk Committee). 

P&PC member 

Directors who resigned/retired during the financial year 

No directors have resigned or retired during the financial year. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Western Power’s principal activities 

The principal continuing functions of Western Power are: 
> To manage, plan, develop, expand, enhance, improve and reinforce the electricity transmission and distribution network known as

the South West Interconnected System 
> To provide and improve electricity transmission and distribution services 
> To provide access to services of network infrastructure facilities as required and authorised by Part 8 of the Electricity Industry Act 

(which relates to network access) 
> To provide services as required and authorised by Part 9 of the Electricity Industry Act (which relates to the wholesale electricity 

market) 
> To provide services that improve the efficiency of electricity supply and the management of demand on electricity transmission

and distribution systems 
> To provide ancillary services 

In performing its functions, Western Power must act in accordance with prudent commercial principles and endeavour to make a profit
consistent with maximising its long-term value. 

There have been no changes in the nature of Western Power’s principal activities during the financial year ended 30 June 2013. 

Review of operations 

Information on the operations and financial position of Western Power and its business strategies is presented in the ‘corporate
snapshot’ and ‘operational and financial review’ sections of this annual report. 

Western Power’s operating results 

Western Power achieved a profit after income tax equivalent of $191.377 million for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 (30 June
2012: $157.131 million). 

Dividends

Western Power paid a final dividend of $102.135 million on 31 December 2012 in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2012 (30 
June 2011: $84.258 million paid on 30 December 2011).  

Since the end of the reporting period the directors have recommended, subject to the approval of the Minister for Energy (Minister), the 
payment of a final dividend of $124.395 million in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2013. 

Report no. 14 of the Standing Committee on Public Administration 

Following publication of report no. 14 (‘Unassisted Failure’) by the Standing Committee on Public Administration (Standing Committee)
in January 2012, Western Power initiated a detailed action plan designed to address the Standing Committee’s feedback. 

The government published its response to the Standing Committee’s report in May 2012 and subsequently tabled it in Parliament on
12 June 2012.  The government’s response included Western Power’s management action plan thus placing Western Power’s 
commitments on the public record.  

During the 2013 financial year Western Power completed implementation of all but one of 28 initiatives in the management action plan.
Completion of the remaining action has been delayed to ensure that deployment of mobile workforce technology optimises the required
investment in the context of a new operating model being adopted by Western Power. 

The most significant and measurable performance improvement has been the further acceleration of the treatment of wood poles.  In 
the 2013 financial year, 17,432 wood poles were replaced and 48,479 reinforced (compared to 15,512 and 24,643 in the 2012 financial
year, respectively). 

Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year 

Nil.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Likely developments and expected results of operations 

Likely developments in the operations of Western Power that were not finalised at the date of this financial report include the matters set 
out below. 

> Access arrangement 3 
On 29 November 2012 the Economic Regulation Authority (ERA) approved Western Power’s third access arrangement for the 
five year period from 1 July 2012 to 30 June 2017 (AA3), including regulated capital expenditure totalling $5.8 billion (excluding 
gifted assets) and regulated operating expenditure totalling $2.6 billion.  The ERA sets service performance targets and network
tariffs and charges that are best for the Western Australian community.  The ERA's final determination in respect of AA3 
represents a major efficiency challenge for Western Power over the forward estimates period. 

State budget funding for regulated capital expenditure of $4.7 billion has been confirmed in respect of the AA3 period, including
$1.627 billion in respect of safety-related programs.  However, the funding does not include Western Power’s request for full 
levels of AA3 capital expenditure in 2016/17 and AA3 levels of non-growth capital expenditure over the forward estimates period.

To enable Western Power to deliver on the full spectrum of commitments included in AA3, it requires $1,085 million of additional
funding above currently budgeted levels.  The government has requested Western Power to prepare business cases to justify 
this additional capital expenditure.  The expenditure ($531.2 million of growth capital expenditure, including $32 million of gifted
assets, and $553.8 million of non-growth capital expenditure, including $14 million of unregulated capital expenditure) has 
already been endorsed by the ERA as part of AA3 but is not currently included in the forward estimates. 

If the additional funding is not provided or Western Power is unable to identify further efficiency savings, there is an increased
risk that the safety and reliability outcomes expected in AA3 will not be achieved.  Additional funding will be required in order to 
further improve these performance levels. 

Forecasting customer demand requirements in the current economic conditions presents an ongoing challenge for Western 
Power.  Declining consumption is driven by a combination of changing consumer behaviour, more efficient appliances and 
increasing numbers of photovoltaic systems being installed across the network. 

> Asset management and public safety 
Western Power has a vast electrical network with infrastructure that crosses both public and private property, above and below 
ground.  Whilst an inherent risk exists in any electrical network, Western Power has a responsibility to apply a prudent and 
diligent approach to managing the public safety risk associated with its assets. 

With approximately 25% of its wood poles located in ‘extreme’ or ‘high’ bushfire risk areas, the potential for electricity network
assets to ignite bushfires is one of the most significant public safety risks for the Western Power network.  The potential for
electric shock is also inherent in distribution network assets such as overhead customer service connections. 

Western Power’s challenge is to ensure these distribution assets continue to operate safely and are replaced before they reach 
the end of their useful life.  In September 2013 Western Power will publish its inaugural state of the infrastructure report, which
provides further details of the challenge facing Western Power in its management of the risks inherent in the network assets. 

During the AA3 period, a primary focus will be on investing in activities that minimise the risk of harm to the public and reduce the 
potential for bushfires to be initiated by Western Power’s network assets.  Details of Western Power’s proposed investment 
program to reduce the public safety risk can be found in Western Power’s AA3 submission to the ERA. 

Western Power is reliant on funding from its shareholder to meet these and any additional regulatory requirements. 

Other likely developments in the operations of Western Power are presented in the ‘operational and financial review’ section of this 
annual report. 

Borrowing limit 

The maximum amount of borrowings permitted by the Department of Treasury (DoT) for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 is 
currently $6,920.960 million. This is equal to Western Power’s current forecast of gross borrowings. 

Rounding of amounts 

Amounts presented in the directors’ and financial reports have been rounded off to the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise
stated.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Directors’ attendance at meetings 
Details of the number of meetings of the Board (and of its committees) that directors were eligible to attend and the number of meetings 
attended by each of the directors for the financial year ended 30 June 2013 are as follows: 

Board People & Performance Committee Finance & Risk Committee 
Attendee Eligible Attended Eligible Attended Eligible Attended 

A Mulgrew 14 12 3 3 - 51

J Cahill 18 18 5 5 6 6 
G Cash 18 18 5 5 - 61

M Davies 18 18 - 21 6 6 
P Underwood 18 18 4 32 6 4 
S Wilson 7 83 1 2³ - 31

1. The director was not a member of the relevant committee, but attended as an invitee. 

2. Mr Underwood was a member of the People & Performance Committee between 20 April 2012 and 29 January 2013.  Thereafter, he attended 
committee meetings as an invitee. 

3. Ms Wilson was appointed a director on 28 December 2012.  She attended one Board meeting and one People & Performance Committee meeting prior 
to her appointment as an invitee.  

Company Secretary 

John Pease LLM, the General Counsel & Company Secretary, has been practising law since the mid-1980s and has substantial 
commercial as well as dispute resolution experience in a broad range of subject areas, including intellectual property, banking and 
finance, debt recovery, insolvency, trade practices, higher education and energy and infrastructure. He also has substantial in-house
legal practice management experience. Prior to joining Western Power, Mr Pease has practised as a barrister at Western Australia’s
independent Bar and also held various in-house, private practice and government positions. 

Environmental performance 

Full details of Western Power’s performance in terms of applicable environmental legislative obligations are provided in the 
‘environmental due diligence/responsibility’ section of the corporate government statement included in this financial report. 

Indemnity and insurance of officers 

Western Power has entered into deeds of indemnity, insurance and access with each of the persons listed as directors. The respective
deeds are identical and in the following terms: 
> Western Power indemnifies the person against all liabilities and costs relating to proceedings that are anticipated, threatened or 

commenced against the director by reason of him or her being or having been a director of Western Power 

> The indemnity does not extend to claims against the director by Western Power or a subsidiary, or to any liability or claim arising
out of conduct involving a lack of good faith 

Western Power holds a directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy. Subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, this cover will 
pay on behalf of the corporation (or its directors and officers), losses arising from a claim or claims made against them jointly or 
severally during the period of insurance by reason of any wrongful act (as defined by the policy) in the capacity of a director or officer of 
Western Power. 

At the date of this report no claims have been made against the directors and officers component of the policy. 

Auditor

Under the Act, the Auditor General for Western Australia has been appointed as Western Power’s independent auditor. The Auditor
General Act provides that the auditor can conduct audits in the manner he or she sees fit and is not subject to direction by any person 
about the way in which those powers are exercised. 

Non-audit services 

Neither the Office of the Auditor General nor his agent provided any non-audit services during the financial year ended 30 June 2013 
(30 June 2012: $0.004 million - refer to note 5(e) of the financial statements included in this financial report for further details). 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT - REMUNERATION 

Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration 

Western Power’s remuneration policy is to:  

> Provide market competitive remuneration to employees having regard to both the level of work assigned and the personal 
effectiveness in its performance 

> Allocate remuneration to employees on the basis of merit and performance 

> Adopt individual performance measures that are linked to Western Power’s objectives 

Non-executive directors 

The Minister approves the remuneration of all non-executive directors.  The remuneration framework for non-executive directors 
incorporates a fixed remuneration and superannuation component. 

Chief Executive Officer and executives 

Subject to the concurrence of the Minister, the Board approves the remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer.  

The Board also approves the remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer’s direct reports following review and recommendation by the 
People & Performance Committee (on recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer).  The remuneration framework for the Chief 
Executive Officer and executives consists solely of fixed remuneration, which includes base salary, superannuation and benefits to 
reflect the level of work, responsibility and personal competency in the role.  This component may be delivered as a combination of cash 
and prescribed non-financial benefits at the individual’s discretion.  Fixed remuneration is reviewed annually on the basis of competitive
market movement and personal performance. 

There are no guaranteed fixed remuneration increases included in any senior executives’ contracts.  No remuneration increases were 
awarded to the Chief Executive Officer or any other executive officer in the financial year ended 30 June 2013. 

Details of remuneration 

Non-executive directors 

In accordance with clause 13(c) of the fourth schedule to the Act, details of the remuneration paid to current directors for the financial 
years ended 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2013 are set out in the following table.  

Salary & 
fees

Non-
monetary 

benefits 

Post-
employment

super.
benefits 

Other  
long-term 

benefits 
Terminatio
n benefits 

Total 
benefits 

Name
Financial 

year $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2013 110 - 10 - - 120A Mulgrew  
(from 21/08/2012) 2012 - - - - - -

2013 75 - 7 - - 82J Cahill 
2012 75 - 7 - - 82
2013 48 - 24 - - 72G Cash 
2012 46 - 22 - - 68
2013 55 - 5 - - 60M Davies 
2012 24 - 36 - - 60
2013 29 - 31 - - 60P Underwood 
2012 39 - 21 - - 60
2013 28 - 2 - - 30S Wilson

(from 28/12/2012) 2012 - - - - - -
2013 345 - 79 - - 424 Total*
2012 184 - 86 - - 270 

* The Board normally comprises six directors.  The lower total remuneration in 2012 reflects the retirement of one director in February 2012 and another 
at the end of April 2012 and their replacements not being appointed until the 2013 year.  
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Five highest paid officers 

In accordance with clause 13(c) of the fourth schedule to the Act, details of the nature and amount of each element of the remuneration 
paid to each of the five highest paid officers of Western Power during the financial year ended 30 June 2013 are provided below.

Total annual fixed remuneration1
2013

$’000
2012

$’000

M de Laeter 438 438

P Mattner2 235 -

K Brown 495 495

P Italiano 475 416

S Hart 435 435

1. This table shows the total annual fixed remuneration to which the respective individuals were 
entitled as at the reporting date.  

2. Mr Mattner was not one of the five highest paid officers of Western Power in 2012.  

A reconciliation of the amounts paid to each of the five highest paid officers is provided in the individual tables below.  

M de Laeter (until 29/03/2013)
2013 

$’000 
2012 

$’000 P Mattner (until 15/03/2013)
2013 

$’000 
2012 

$’000 

Total annual fixed remuneration 438 438 Total annual fixed remuneration: 235

Adjustment for part year employment (109) - Adjustment for part year employment (68)

 329 438 167

Salary & fees 283 378 Salary & fees 117

Non-monetary benefits 15 20 Non-monetary benefits 7

Post-employment super. benefits 31 40 Post-employment super. benefits 43

Sub-total 329 438 Sub-total 167

Payment of accrued leave* 233 - Superannuation employer contribution 4

Payment of reduced contractual notice* 295 - Payment of accrued leave* 150

Total remuneration paid 857 438 Payment of contractual notice* 398

Long service leave accrual - 10 Total remuneration paid 719 

N/A 

* The amounts paid to Mr de Laeter are in line with his employment contract and 
are subject to taxation deductions required by law.  

 * The amounts paid to Mr Mattner are in line with his employment contract and are 
subject to taxation deductions required by law. 

      

K Brown 
2013 

$’000 
2012 

$’000 P Italiano 
2013 

$’000 
2012 

$’000 

Total annual fixed remuneration: 495 495 Total annual fixed remuneration: 475 416 

Adjustment for mid-year promotion - (28)

Adjustment for higher duties - 16

 495 483*  475 416

Salary & fees 55 164 Salary & fees 431 373 

Non-monetary benefits 1 13 Non-monetary benefits 20 17

Post-employment super. benefits 439 306 Post-employment super. benefits 24 26

Sub-total 495 483* Sub-total 475 416

Superannuation employer contribution 12 9 Back pay on CEO appointment 26 -

Total remuneration paid  507 492 Total remuneration paid* 501 416 

Long service leave accrual 11 11 Long service leave accrual 11 10

* The increase in Mr Brown’s remuneration reflects his appointment as 
Executive General Manager Operations from November 2011.  Prior to this Mr 
Brown was the General Manager System Management. 

 * The increase in Mr Italiano’s remuneration reflects his appointment as Chief 
Executive Officer during 2013 with effect from 06/02/2012.  Prior to this 
Mr Italiano was the General Manager Corporate Services. 
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S Hart (from 24/10/2011)
2013 

$’000 
2012 

$’000 
  

Total annual fixed remuneration: 435 435 

Adjustment for part year employment* - (134)

435 301   

Salary & fees 398 275   

Non-monetary benefits 1 1   

Post-employment super. benefits 36 25   

Total remuneration paid 435 301   

Long service leave accrual 10 7   

* Mr Hart commenced employment on 24/10/2011.   

Remuneration paid to executive officers 

Western Power provides the following disclosure in relation to remuneration paid to designated executive officers who were employed 
by the business as at 30 June in each year.  

Executive officers 
2013

$’000
2012

$’000

Total paid 3,282 3,065

Number of executives officers 

Total paid 2013 2012

$  50,001 - $100,000 - 1

$100,001 - $150,000 1 -

$150,001 - $200,000 1 1

$200,001 - $250,000 - -

$250,001 - $300,000 - -

$300,001 - $350,000 - 1

$350,001 - $400,000 2 2

$400,001 - $450,000 3 3

$450,001 - $500,000 - 1

$500,001 - $550,000 2 -

 9 9
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Employment agreements 

Non-executive directors are subject to the duties and obligations prescribed by the Act.  Under the Act, the Minister determines their 
remuneration. 

Directors’ appointments

Position Term of agreement 

A Mulgrew, Board Chair & non-executive director Appointed by the Governor of Western Australia (Governor) for a 
term commencing on 21/08/2012 and expiring on 20/08/2015. 

J Cahill, Board Deputy Chair & non-executive director Appointed by the Governor for a term commencing on 01/08/2009 
and reappointed for a further term expiring on 31/07/2014. 

G Cash, non-executive director Appointed by the Governor for a term commencing on 27/07/2010 
and expiring on 26/07/2013. 

M Davies, non-executive director Appointed by the Governor for a term commencing on 01/04/2006 
and reappointed for a further term expiring on 20/08/2014. 

P Underwood, non-executive director Appointed by the Governor for a term commencing on 25/05/2009 
and reappointed for a further term expiring on 20/08/2015. 

S Wilson, non-executive director Appointed by the Governor for a term commencing on 28/12/2012 
and expiring on 27/12/2015.

The remuneration and other terms of employment for the Chief Executive Officer and all other senior executives are formalised in
ongoing employment agreements. 

The terms of these agreements relating to remuneration are set out in the following table. 

Executives’ employment agreements (as at 30 June 2013)

Position Term of agreement 

P Italiano, Chief Executive Officer Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 06/02/2012. 

K Brown, Executive General Manager Operations Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 01/04/2006. 

S Hart, Chief Financial Officer Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 24/10/2011. 

C Parrotte, General Manager System Management Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 09/04/2012. 

J Pease, General Counsel & Company Secretary Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 01/04/2006. 

P Southwell, General Manager Regulation & Sustainability Ongoing employment agreement commencing from 01/04/2006. 

FINANCIAL REPORT

WESTERN POWER ANNUAL REPORT 2013 
                               44



FINANCIAL REPORT

WESTERN POWER ANNUAL REPORT 2013 
                               45



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Corporate governance at Western Power 

The Board of Western Power is committed to a high level of corporate governance and fostering a culture that values safety, ethical
behaviour, integrity, diversity and respect. 

This statement summarises Western Power’s key governance principles and practices. These principles are reviewed regularly and 
revised as appropriate to reflect changes in law and industry best practice. 

Western Power must comply with the Act and other Australian laws.  While Western Power is not listed on the Australian Securities
Exchange (ASX), it seeks to comply with the ASX Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations released by the ASX 
Corporate Governance Council (second edition, with 2010 amendments) (ASX Principles) to the extent that they are applicable and not 
inconsistent with the requirements of the Act. 

The ASX Principles require the Board to consider the development and adoption of appropriate governance policies and practices.
Details of Western Power’s compliance with the ASX Principles are set out below and in the compliance checklist included in this
statement.  Details are also published in the corporate governance section of Western Power’s website (www.westernpower.com.au.

1. Laying solid foundations for management and oversight 

As a statutory corporation, the respective duties and responsibilities of the Board and senior executives are substantially set out in the 
Act.  Further details are provided below. 

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Board has overall responsibility for performing the functions, determining the policies and 
controlling the affairs of Western Power.  The Board’s core role is to set Western Power’s strategic direction and to oversee its
management and commercial activities. 

1.1. Board charter (ASX Principles 1.1 & 1.3) 

The roles and responsibilities of the Board are formalised in a Board charter (a copy of which is available in the corporate governance 
section of Western Power’s website) detailing its role, powers, duties and functions.  In addition to matters required by law to be 
approved by the Board, the following matters are also reserved to the Board: 

> Appointments to the position of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) - subject to the Minister’s endorsement - and oversight of 
appointments of the CEO’s direct reports 

> Providing strategic direction, approving policies and reviewing major decisions, including capital expenditure proposals 

> Approving budgets and financial performance 

> Monitoring senior executives’ performance 

> Overseeing compliance with internal processes and regulatory requirements 

> Assessing Board performance to ensure the Board’s effectiveness 

Responsibility for the management of Western Power’s day-to-day operations is delegated to the CEO, who is accountable to the 
Board.  The Board has also delegated a number of responsibilities to its committees.  

The performance of senior executives, including the Chief Executive Officer is reviewed annually against their personal financial and 
non-financial key performance indicators. 

1.2. Board committees (ASX Principles 1.1, 1.3, 2.4, 2.6, 4.1, 4.3, 4.4, 8.1 & 8.4) 

The Board has established two committees to assist in the discharge of its responsibilities, namely: 

> The Finance & Risk Committee (F&RC)
> The People & Performance Committee (P&PC)

Each of the committees has its own terms of reference that describe its role and duties.  The Company Secretary provides secretariat
services for each committee. 

Minutes of all committee meetings are provided to the Board and the proceedings of each meeting are reported by the respective 
committee chair at the next Board meeting.  A director may attend committee meetings even if he or she is not a member of the 
committee.

The number of committee meetings held during the financial year ended 30 June 2013, and members’ attendances at these meetings,
are set out on page 40 of the directors’ report included in this financial report. 
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1.3. Directors’ governance handbook (ASX Principles 1.1 & 1.3) 

Western Power’s directors’ governance handbook is distributed to new directors and is used as part of the induction process.  The
handbook provides a detailed summary of the corporate governance framework and documents applicable to the Board of Western 
Power.  The corporate governance framework comprises various terms of reference and codes that have been prepared in accordance
with applicable statutory requirements, corporate governance standards and best practice guidelines that are considered relevant to 
Western Power. 

2. Structuring the Board to add value 

2.1. Board composition (ASX Principles 2.1, 2.2, 2.3 & 2.6) 

Western Power’s Board of directors, including the Board Chair, are all independent, non-executive directors.  The Act provides that the 
Board must comprise not less than four and not more than six directors.  Directors are appointed by the Governor of Western Australia 
(Governor) on the nomination of the Minister.  In making nominations, the Minister is required to consult with the Board.  The Board 
may also recommend new directors to the Minister if a Board vacancy occurs. 

The Board considers that all of the non-executive directors collectively bring the range of skills, knowledge and experience necessary to 
direct Western Power.  In assessing the composition of the Board, the directors have regard to the following criteria: 

> The Chair and the Deputy Chair must be independent, non-executive directors 
> The role of the Chair and the CEO cannot be filled by the same person 
> The CEO is to be resident in, or near, the town in which Western Power’s head office is located 
> The majority of the Board should comprise independent directors 
> The Board should have an appropriate blend of skills, experience, expertise and diversity 

The Board Chair, Mr A Mulgrew, is an independent non-executive director.  Under the Act, the Governor appoints the Chair and Deputy 
Chair from the non-executive directors on the nomination of the Minister. 

In compliance with the Act, the Board Chair and the CEO are not the same person. 

The Chair is responsible for leadership of the Board, for the efficient organisation and conduct of the Board’s function, and for the 
promotion of relations between Board members and between the Board and management that are open, cordial and conducive to 
productive co-operation.  The Chair’s responsibilities are set out in more detail in the Board charter. 

Further details of the process for evaluating the range of skills, experience, expertise and diversity that will best complement Board 
effectiveness, with a view to ensuring that it has a proper understanding of, and the competence to deal with, the current and emerging
issues of Western Power’s business are available in the corporate governance section of Western Power’s website. 

2.2. Director independence (ASX Principles 2.1 & 2.6) 

The structure and composition of the Board is prescribed by the Act.  The independence of directors is therefore not a matter entirely 
within control of the Board, however, the Board charter provides that in nominating candidate directors to the Minister, the Board will 
have regard to their independence. 

The Board charter further outlines the criteria to be considered in assessing director independence, which are based on the premise that 
a director must be independent of management and free of any business or other relationship that could materially interfere, or could 
reasonably be perceived to interfere, with the exercise of the director’s unfettered and independent judgment. 

The test of whether a business or other relationship is material is based on the nature of the relevant relationship and on the
circumstances of the individual director.  Materiality is considered from the perspective of Western Power, the persons or organisations
with which the director has an association and from the perspective of the director.  The Board considers that a customer or supplier is 
material where the amount receivable or payable, respectively, by Western Power in any 12 month period exceeds $1.5 million.  This
threshold is not conclusive and the Board will examine both the qualitative and quantitative nature of a director’s relationship with any 
particular customer or supplier when assessing director independence.  If the threshold is exceeded, the Board will consider whether or 
not that materially affects the impartiality of the director’s judgment. 

The Board has considered the independence of each of the directors in office at the date of this report and its determination is set out in 
the director profiles on pages 36 to 37 of the directors’ report included in this financial report.  None of the non-executive directors are 
considered to have a business or other relationship that could materially interfere, or could reasonably be perceived to interfere, with the 
exercise of the director’s unfettered and independent judgment. 
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2.3. Conflicts of interest 

Directors must keep the Board advised on an ongoing basis of any interest that could potentially conflict with Western Power’s interests.  
The Board has developed policies and procedures to assist directors on disclosing potential conflicts of interest11.

A director with an actual or potential conflict of interest in relation to a matter before the Board is required to withdraw from the meeting 
while the matter is considered. 

2.4. Board succession planning (ASX Principles 2.4 & 2.6) 

The P&PC assists the Board with succession planning.  The P&PC reviews the size and composition of the Board and the mix of 
existing and desired competencies and diversity across members and reports its conclusions to the Board annually. 

Non-executive directors are appointed for a period of up to three years and are eligible for reappointment, but may be removed from
office by the Governor at any time. 

When a non-executive director position is vacant, the Governor appoints a replacement on the nomination of the Minister, who must
consult with the Board.  The Minister is not bound by any Board recommendation.  Prior to making a recommendation, the Board (via
the P&PC) assesses the range of skills, expertise, competencies and diversity represented (and required) in the Board’s composition
and seeks to identify candidates who best complement the Board’s composition. 

Criteria considered by the P&PC when evaluating prospective candidates are contained in the Board charter, which is available in the 
corporate governance section of Western Power’s website. 

2.5. Terms of appointment, induction training and continuing education (ASX Principles 1.1 & 1.3) 

Under the Act, a director holds office for such period, not exceeding three years, as is specified in the instrument of his or her
appointment, and is eligible for reappointment.  Periods of appointment will be structured to ensure that approximately one-third of 
directors retire each calendar year. 

All current non-executive directors have been provided with a letter of appointment detailing the terms of their appointment, as well as 
providing all of the information recommended by the ASX Principles (including duties, rights and responsibilities, the time commitment
envisaged and the Board’s expectations regarding involvement with committee work). 

The P&PC oversees establishment and implementation of an effective induction process for new directors and reviews that process
regularly.  The induction process includes discussions with the CEO, senior management and access to the external and internal 
auditors, and provision of information on key corporate and Board policies and strategic plans. 

All directors are expected to undertake professional development to maintain the skills required to discharge their duties.  Where this 
involves industry seminars and approved education courses, Western Power pays the cost, subject to the Chair’s approval.  In addition,
where skill gaps are identified, directors will be provided with appropriate resources and training. 

2.6. Performance evaluation (ASX Principles 1.2, 1.3, 2.5 & 2.6) 

The performance of the Board as a whole, individually and each of its committees is evaluated on a regular basis (at least annually) 
against the requirements of their respective charters.  In addition, the individual performance of the Board Chair and the directors is also 
reviewed.  The P&PC determines the evaluation process for the Board and individual directors. 

The performance evaluation of the Board as a whole, individual directors and the Board’s committees during the 2013 financial year 
comprised: 

> Informal critique and feedback immediately following each meeting of the Board and its committees covering the quality of the
engagement and contributions by individuals and the quality of the papers provided to support the meeting 

> An annual report following the end of the financial year outlining the performance of the Board and its committees in terms of
their respective charters, significant matters considered during the year under review, goals and objectives for the following year 
and recommendations for any improvements to the respective charters deemed necessary or desirable 

The P&PC reviews and makes recommendations to the Board on the process for reviewing the performance of the CEO.  The CEO’s 
performance is judged against the approved strategic plan and the corporate and personal key performance indicators established for 
the CEO on an annual basis.  The same process is adopted in the case of other senior executives.  During July and August of each year 
the performance of the CEO and other senior executives is evaluated in accordance with the approved process. 

Further details of the process for performance evaluation of the Board, its committees, individual directors and Western Power’s senior 
executives appears in the corporate governance section of Western Power’s website. 

                                                                 
1 The relevant policies and procedures include Western Power’s conflict of interest policy and an outline of the duties and obligations of directors and 

executive officers that is provided to all directors on appointment.  Further, the agenda for all Board and committee meetings includes a standing item 
for declarations of material personal interests to be made.
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2.7. Board access to information and professional advice 

Directors have direct access to members of Western Power’s management and information. 

Directors may, in carrying out their duties owed to Western Power, seek external professional advice.  They are entitled to 
reimbursement of all reasonable costs where a request for advice is approved by the Chair.  Where the Board Chair proposes to seek
external advice, he or she will consult the Chair of the P&PC. 

2.8. Directors’ remuneration (ASX Principles 8.3 & 8.4) 

The P&PC is responsible for, among other matters, assisting the Board in establishing remuneration policies and reviewing their
effectiveness.  The remuneration of non-executive directors is determined by the Minister. 

Western Power has a remuneration policy that distinguishes between the structure of non-executive and executive directors’ 
remuneration.  Details of remuneration policy, together with details of the remuneration paid to Western Power’s directors (executive
and non-executive) are included in the remuneration section of the directors’ report included in this financial report. 

There are no schemes for retirement benefits, other than superannuation, provided for any non-executive director. 

2.9. Company Secretary (ASX Principle 2.5) 

The Company Secretary is Mr J Pease, who is also the General Counsel.  His qualifications and experience are set out on page 40 of 
the directors’ report included in this financial report.  The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary requires Board 
endorsement.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures are complied with and that governance matters are 
addressed.  All directors have access to the Company Secretary’s advice and services. 

2.10. Board meetings (ASX Principles 2.6, 4.4 & 8.4) 

The Board meets at least ten times per calendar year to address strategic issues and as needed to address urgent issues.  During the 
financial year ended 30 June 2013, the Board held 18 meetings.  Details of directors’ attendance at these meetings are set out on page 
40 of the directors’ report included in this financial report. 

The Board has adopted rules and procedures which govern the proceedings of Board meetings in addition to the provisions in Schedule
1 of the Act.  In summary the procedure is as follows: 

> The Board Chair sets the agenda for each meeting in consultation with the CEO 

> Any director may request additional matters to be placed on the agenda 

> Members of senior management attend meetings of the Board by invitation, but sessions are also scheduled at each formal 
Board meeting for non-executive directors to meet without management present 

> Copies of Board papers are circulated electronically in advance of meetings 

> Directors are entitled to request additional information where they consider the information is necessary to support informed
decision-making 

3. Promoting ethical and responsible decision-making 

3.1. Code of conduct and public interest disclosure policy (ASX Principles 3.1 & 3.5) 

The Board has approved: 

> A code of conduct that applies to directors, officers and all employees of Western Power 
> A legislative and regulatory compliance policy 
> A conflict of interest policy 
> A public interest disclosure policy 

Collectively, the code of conduct and respective policies: 

> Promote ethical and responsible decision-making and outline the minimum standards of conduct for all directors, officers and 
employees of Western Power 

> Outline Western Power’s position on a range of ethical and legal issues and summarise its policies on matters such as 
compliance with laws, occupational health and safety, corporate opportunity, confidentiality, protection of corporate assets, 
diversity in the workplace and responsibility for the environment 

> Guide compliance with Western Power’s legal and other obligations to its stakeholders, including the Minister and the 
government, employees, customers, the community, unions and regulatory authorities 

> Are designed to reflect Western Power’s commitment to appropriate corporate practices 
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A copy of the code of conduct and respective policies is available in the corporate governance section of Western Power’s website.

In accordance with the Act, the Board has also adopted minimum standards of merit, equity and probity applicable to management of
Western Power’s staff. 

3.2. Diversity at Western Power (ASX Principles 3.2 - 3.5) 

Western Power recognises the value and unique contribution that all people make due to their individual skills, experiences and
perspectives in fostering a constructive and inclusive work culture.  In support of this recognition, Western Power has established a 
diversity policy, a copy of which is available in the corporate governance section of Western Power’s website. 

Western Power is committed to having a diverse workforce in which appointment and advancement are merit-based.  In support of this 
commitment, the Board established diversity objectives for the 2013 financial year, including with regard to gender.  The following table 
provides a summary of those objectives and the respective outcomes as at 30 June 2013:  

Objective Target Outcome 

Women in tiers 2 and 3 of management 
Tier 2 = reports directly to the CEO 
Tier 3 = reports to tier 2 

22.0% 12.5% 

Indigenous Australians 1.2% 0.7% 

People from culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds 23.0% 22.54% 

People with disabilities 2.2% 1.2% 

Youth (less than 25 years old) 9.5% 5.36% 

Western Power’s diversity and inclusion plan has been endorsed in accordance with the Equal Opportunity Act.  The plan seeks to 
support the business to deliver on its strategic objectives through the attraction, retention and engagement of a diverse and inclusive
workforce that celebrates individual differences.   The plan will be refined and finalised following implementation of a new operating 
model during the 2013/14 financial year.  

In terms of the 2013 diversity outcomes: 

> Western Power’s workforce representation of people from a culturally diverse backgrounds is within the target range 
recommended by the Public Sector Commission in its ‘How does your agency compare in 2012’ report 

> The pipeline of youth employees through Western Power’s entry level programs will ensure that the representation of youth in its
workforce continues to improve 

> The diversity plan includes high level actions to address representation of women in management, indigenous Australians and 
people with disabilities 

The proportion of female employees as at 30 June 2013 on the Board, in senior executive positions and the whole corporation was as 
follows: 

Position Outcome 

Board 16.7%

Senior management (namely employees at the CEO, general manager and branch manager level) 12.5%

Whole workforce 21.46%

4. Safeguarding integrity in financial reporting 

4.1. Finance & Risk Committee (ASX Principle 4) 

The role of the F&RC is to assist the Board to meet its oversight responsibilities in relation to Western Power’s financial reporting,
application of accounting policies, financial management and treasury function, internal control, risk management and compliance
systems and the internal and external audit function.  In doing so, the committee is to maintain free and open communication with the 
Auditor General for Western Australia (Auditor General), the internal auditors and management of Western Power. 

The committee’s terms of reference specify that the F&RC will be comprised of a minimum of three members, all of whom will be non-
executive directors and a majority of whom will be independent directors.  The terms of reference also specify that the F&RC will be 
chaired by an independent director, who is not the Board Chair.  A copy of the terms of reference detailing the F&RC’s duties is
available in the corporate governance section of Western Power’s website. 

The members of the F&RC are Mr J Cahill (Chair), Mr M Davies and Mr P Underwood.  All matters reviewed by the F&RC are reported
to the full Board for noting or approval. 

A representative of the Office of the Auditor General, the CEO, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Manager Risk Assurance & Audit and 
General Counsel & Company Secretary attend committee meetings by invitation. 

FINANCIAL REPORT

WESTERN POWER ANNUAL REPORT 2013 
                               50



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

4.2. Financial reporting (ASX Principles 7.3 & 7.4) 

The Act requires the Board to declare annually that Western Power’s financial statements give, in all material respects, a true and fair 
view of its financial position, and that its financial condition and operating results are in accordance with relevant accounting standards. 

The CEO and the CFO have assured the Board that: 

> Western Power’s financial report presents a true and fair view, in all material respects, of its financial condition and operational
results, and is in accordance with relevant accounting standards 

> Such declaration is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal control and that the system is operating 
effectively in all material respects in relation to financial reporting risks 

4.3. External auditor relationship (ASX Principles 4.3 & 4.4) 

The Act requires that Western Power’s financial statements are audited by the Auditor General by 30 September each year.  The 
Auditor General also reports to the Minister on whether he or she is of the opinion that the financial report is in accordance with the Act. 

The F&RC oversees communications between the Board, senior financial management, Risk Assurance & Audit and the Auditor 
General in order to ensure that all assistance that is necessary to complete the audit by the Auditor General is provided. 

Western Power does not have control over the appointment (or selection) of the external auditor because this is a matter prescribed by 
the Act. 

5. Making timely and balanced disclosure (ASX Principle 5) 

Western Power is not a listed company and is not subject to disclosure obligations under the ASX Listing Rules.  However, the Act
imposes requirements on Western Power to report to the Minister on a range of matters. 

The F&RC monitors Western Power’s systems and processes to achieve compliance with, amongst other matters, its reporting 
requirements.

6. Respecting the rights of our shareholder (ASX Principle 6) 

Western Power does not have any issued shares.  As Western Power’s governing body, the Board is responsible to the Minister for its 
performance.  The Minister has various rights set out in the Act in relation to certain aspects of Western Power, such as Board
nominations, approvals for certain transactions, and access to information about the corporation.  The Minister and the Board must, at 
the request of either, consult on any aspect of Western Power’s operations. 

Western Power has established a formal protocol to ensure effective communication with the Minister and the Minister’s office.  The 
protocol reflects the particular relationship between Western Power (being a statutory corporation) and the government and recognises
that the Minister must receive information to enable him to discharge his ministerial duties. 

The Act also imposes the following reporting obligations on Western Power: 

> Western Power must produce a strategic development plan (SDP) and a statement of corporate intent (SCI) each year.  The SDP 
sets out Western Power’s five-year economic and financial objectives, strategic result areas and associated performance targets,
as well as strategies.  The SCI sets out Western Power’s scope of activities, objectives and performance targets for the coming
financial year and is consistent with the SDP.  The SCI is tabled in parliament after it has been agreed with the Minister and has
received the Treasurer’s endorsement. 

> Western Power must provide quarterly and annual written reports to the Minister detailing its performance and progress made in
fulfilling the agreed targets detailed in the SCI. 

7. Recognising and managing risk (ASX Principle 7) 

Western Power has a comprehensive framework to manage its strategic, operational, regulatory and reporting risks.  The corporate risk 
management policy sets out a methodology and process for identification of risks, outlines the accountabilities of management and
contains procedures for reporting on risk issues throughout Western Power.  A description of the corporate risk management policy and 
internal control systems is available in the corporate governance section of Western Power’s website. 

Divisional general managers are responsible for identifying risks and implementing strategies to mitigate them.  The F&RC oversees the 
risk management framework and reviews the effectiveness of key mitigation strategies.  Risk reviews are conducted at least annually to 
ensure emerging risks, such as those from changes in market structure and design, organisational restructures and operational issues
are identified and responses developed. 

The CEO and the CFO have assured the Board that Western Power’s management of its material business risks is effective. 

Management makes recommendations to the Board on the appropriate level of insurance cover for Western Power.  Financial risk 
issues are managed through a treasury policy statement that requires regular reporting to the F&RC on treasury activities. 
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8. Remunerating fairly and responsibly

The remuneration report (pages 41 to 44 of the directors’ report included in this financial report) sets out details of Western Power’s 
policies and practices for remunerating directors, senior management and employees. 

8.1. People & Performance Committee (ASX Principles 2.4, 2.6, 8.1, 8.2 & 8.4)  

The role of the P&PC is to assist the Board to meet its oversight responsibilities in relation to Western Power’s governance practices,
review Board composition and succession planning for the Board and CEO and assist the Board in establishing remuneration, 
incentives and human resources policies and a performance review framework. 

The committee’s terms of reference specify that the P&PC will be comprised of a minimum of three members, all of whom will be non-
executive directors and a majority of whom will be independent directors.  The terms of reference also specify that the P&PC will be 
chaired by an independent director, who is not the Board Chair.  A copy of the terms of reference, detailing the committee’s duties is 
available in the corporate governance section of Western Power’s website. 

The members of the P&PC are the Hon. G Cash AM (Chair), Mr A Mulgrew, Mr J Cahill, and Ms S Wilson.  All matters reviewed by the
P&PC are reported to the full Board for noting or approval. 

The CEO, General Manager Corporate Services and General Counsel & Company Secretary attend committee meetings by invitation. 

9. Corporate compliance disclosures 

9.1. Freedom of information 

Subject to certain exceptions, the Freedom of Information Act (FOI Act) requires Western Power to provide access to its documents 
where an application for access is made.  The FOI Act also requires Western Power to publish an up-to-date information statement
about the corporation.   

An up-to-date information statement, as well as a guide on how to make an application under the FOI Act are published on Western
Power’s website and can be inspected free of cost at any time.   

9.2. Observance of Western Power’s code of conduct 

Section 33 of the Act requires the Board to report to the Minister on the observance of Western Power’s code of conduct by members of 
staff.  This report is required at the same time as delivering Western Power’s annual report. 

The Board confirms that consistent with section 31 of the Act, the code of conduct was developed after consultation with the 
Commissioner for Public Sector Standards and was first adopted by the Board at its meeting on 24 March 2006.  The code of conduct
has been amended from time to time. 

The code of conduct has been circulated to Western Power’s employees and is available on the intranet for employee reference. 

As permitted by the Act, the Board has delegated accountability through the CEO to formal leaders in the corporation to ensure 
observance of the standards of conduct and integrity by members of staff. 

9.3. Record-keeping 

Western Power maintains and supports quality record keeping practices in its day-to-day business activities.  All records are managed 
according to the requirements of the State Records Act and Western Power’s approved record-keeping plan.  Regular reviews are 
conducted of Western Power’s record-keeping systems and practices to ensure their efficiency and effectiveness. 

New staff and contractors are provided with information on the record-keeping systems, both at induction and at compulsory training in 
the use of the system.  The training programs are reviewed on an ongoing basis to ensure they reflect any new business requirements. 

9.4. Environmental due diligence/responsibility (Schedule 4, clause 11(1)(f), of the Act) 

Western Power’s environment policy encompasses environmental management principles including compliance, minimising impact, 
community consultation, planning, and continuous improvement objectives.  Its sites are subject to State and Commonwealth 
environmental legislation and regulations.  Some are also covered by specific ministerial conditions and environmental licences and 
permits issued by the State. 

During the 2013 financial year, further steps were taken to strengthen Western Power’s compliance controls and assurance processes,
including a two level environmental audit program of operational activities and key approval conditions.  All reportable compliance
failures have been reported to the relevant regulator and the Board (via the F&RC).  Corrective actions have been identified and are 
being implemented.

Under the Environmental Protection Act, Western Power holds one operating licence for a metropolitan depot and one purpose permit to 
allow self-assessment for projects requiring the clearing of native vegetation.  An audit conducted as a condition of the operating licence 
identified potential compliance failures which have been communicated to the Department of Environment and Conservation (DEC).
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Corrective actions have been identified and are being implemented.  The purpose (clearing) permit is subject to annual reporting and 
auditing conditions imposed by the DEC.  

The DEC and the Environment Protection Authority (EPA) issued the Environmental Protection (Western Power Transmission 
Substation Noise Emissions) Approval Amendment on 17 July 2012 which addresses issues of noise emission from transmission 
substations.  Discussions are ongoing with the DEC and the EPA to address noise compliance issues with distribution transformers.

Western Power is required to report environmental incidents to its regulators.  As described in this annual report, Western Power has 
discussed six significant environmental incidents with regulators during the 2013 financial year. 

9.5. Electoral Act (section 175ZE) 

In accordance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act, the following expenditure was incurred by Western Power during the 2013 
financial year.  The expenditure includes costs associated with public safety campaigns, the Future Energy Alliance, planned outage
notifications, self-read meter mail outs and recruiting. 

Category Amount ($) Recipient Nature of work 

Advertising agencies 209,789 Adcorp Australia Various including: public safety messages, notification 
of planned works and staff recruitment 

334,656 Marketforce Public safety campaign 

262,230 Brand Agency Future Energy Alliance 

326,650 303 Advertising Group Future Energy Alliance 

133,775 Workhouse Advertising Various including: school education materials, 
photography and customer communication materials 

199,377 Eight Steps West Staff recruitment 

112,540 Meerkats Community communications and measurement 
development

7,180 Cooch Creative Land development communications 

Sub-total 1,586,197

Market research 182,100 Taylor Nelson Sofres Business market research and Future Energy Alliance 

 205,170 Ipsos (formerly 
Synovate) 

Various including: public safety campaign research 
and customer service research 

Sub-total 387,270   

Direct mail organisations 371,857 Salmat Printing and postage 

 679,114 Bing Technologies Notification of planned works 

 4,004 Mailforce Document
Solutions

Legal and regulation mail outs 

Sub-total 1,054,975   

Media advertising 1,245,936 Optimum Media 
Decisions

Various including: public safety campaigns and 
Future Energy Alliance 

17,760 Mitchell & Partners Community communications advertising 

Sub-total 1,263,696   

Total expenditure 4,292,138
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ASX Principles checklist 

The following table reports on the extent to which Western Power has complied with the ASX Principles and provides reasons for any 
non-compliance.

ASX Principle Status

Principle 1  Lay solid foundations for management and oversight 
1.1 Establish the functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to senior executives and disclose those 

functions. �

1.2 Disclose the process for evaluating the performance of senior executives. �

1.3 Provide the information indicated in the guide to reporting on ASX Principle 1. �

Principle 2  Structure the Board to add value 
2.1 A majority of the Board should be independent directors. �1

2.2 The Board Chair should be an independent director. �

2.3 The roles of the Board Chair and CEO should not be exercised by the same individual. �

2.4 The Board should establish a nomination committee. �

2.5 Disclose the process for evaluating the performance of the Board, its committees and individual directors. �

2.6 Provide the information indicated in the guide to reporting on ASX Principle 2. �

Principle 3  Promote ethical and responsible decision-making 
3.1 Establish a code of conduct and disclose the code or a summary of the code as to: 
 3.1.1 The practices necessary to maintain confidence in the company’s integrity 
 3.1.2 The practices necessary to take into account Western Power’s legal obligations and the reasonable 

expectations of its stakeholders 
 3.1.3 The responsibility and accountability of individuals for reporting and investigating reports of unethical 

practices.

�

3.2 Establish a policy concerning diversity and disclose the policy or a summary of the policy. �

3.3 Disclose in each annual report the measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity set by the Board and 
progress towards achieving them. �

3.4 Disclose in each annual report the proportion of female employees in the whole organisation, in senior executive 
positions and on the Board. �

3.5 Provide the information indicated in the guide to reporting on ASX Principle 3. �

Principle 4  Safeguard integrity in financial reporting 
4.1 The Board should establish an audit committee. �

4.2 Structure the audit committee so that it consists of: (i) only non-executive directors; (ii) a majority of independent 
directors; (iii) an independent Chair, who is not the Board Chair; and (iv) at least three members. �2

4.3 The audit committee should have a formal charter. �3

4.4 Provide the information indicated in the guide to reporting on ASX Principle 4. �

Principle 5  Make timely and balanced disclosure 
5.1 Establish written policies designed to ensure compliance with ASX Listing Rule disclosure requirements and to 

ensure accountability at a senior executive level for that compliance and disclose those policies or a summary of 
those policies. 

N/A4

5.2 Provide the information indicated in the guide to reporting on ASX Principle 5. N/A4

Principle 6  Respect the rights of shareholders 
6.1 Design a communications policy for promoting effective communication with shareholders and encouraging their 

participation at general meetings and disclose the policy or a summary of the policy. �

6.2 Provide the information indicated in the guide to reporting on ASX Principle 6. �5

Principle 7  Recognise and manage risk 
7.1 Establish policies for the oversight and management of material business risks and disclose a summary of those 

policies. �

7.2 The Board should require management to design and implement the risk management and internal control system 
to manage Western Power’s material business risks and report to it on whether those risks are being managed 
effectively. The Board should disclose that management has reported to it as to the effectiveness of Western 
Power’s management of its material business risks. 

�

7.3 The Board should disclose whether it has received assurance from the CEO and the CFO that the declaration 
provided in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act is founded on a sound system of risk 
management and internal control and that the system is operating effectively in all material respects in relation to 
financial reporting risks. 

�

7.4 Provide the information indicated in the guide to reporting on ASX Principle 7. �

Principle 8  Encourage enhanced performance 
8.1 The Board should establish a remuneration committee. �1

 8.2 Structure the remuneration committee so that it consists of: (i) a majority of independent directors; (ii) an 
independent Chair; and (iii) at least three members. �1

8.3 Clearly distinguish the structure of non-executive directors’ remuneration from that of executive directors and senior 
executives. �

8.4 Provide the information indicated in the guide to reporting on ASX Principle 8. �
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Notes:

1. All directors of the Board are independent, non-executive directors.  However, parts of recommendation 2.4 of the ASX Principles
are not applicable to Western Power to the extent that the composition of the Board is ultimately determined by the Governor (on
recommendation from the Minister).  The P&PC, which serves as the Board’s nominations and remuneration committee, is 
comprised of three independent, non-executive directors and is chaired by someone other than the Board Chair. 

2. All members of the Board, P&PC and F&RC are independent, non-executive directors.  However, the independence of committee 
members influenced by the process of appointment of Western Power’s directors, namely by the Governor on the recommendation 
of the Minister and therefore there may not always be a majority of independent members. The Western Power Board charter 
however, provides that in nominating candidate directors to the Minister, the Board will have regard to their independence. 

3. The Act mandates that Western Power’s external auditor is the Auditor General.  Therefore, recommendations in the ASX Principles
as to selection and appointment of the external auditor and for the rotation of external audit engagement partners are not relevant in 
Western Power’s circumstances. 

4. ASX Principle 5 is not relevant to Western Power because it is not a publicly listed entity and therefore is not subject to the ASX 
Listing Rules (see section 5 of this statement). 

5. Western Power does not hold annual general meetings.  However, the Auditor General reports directly to the Minister in respect of 
the audit of Western Power’s annual financial statements. 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2013
2013 2012

Note  $’000 $’000
Revenue and other income

Revenue from rendering of services 4(a) 1,532,852 1,478,837
Other income 4(c) 5,164 6,634

Total revenue and other income 1,538,016 1,485,471

Expenses
Materials and services (319,753) (354,638)
Employee related expenses 5(a) (226,566) (215,885)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 5(b) (232,861) (204,893)
Other expenses 5(c) (177,483) (205,939)
Borrowing costs 5(f) (311,873) (278,750)

Total expenses (1,268,536) (1,260,105)

Profit before income tax equivalent expense 269,480 225,366
Income tax equivalent expense 6(a) (78,103) (68,235)
Profit for the reporting year 191,377 157,131

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss

Net gains on cash flow hedges 6,979 205
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

Net actuarial gains/(losses) on retirement benefit obligations 269 (359)
Total other comprehensive income for the reporting year, net of tax equivalent 7,248 (154)

Total comprehensive income for the reporting year 198,625 156,977

The above statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance sheet as at 30 June 2013
2013 2012

Note  $’000 $’000
Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7 22,631 22,928
Trade and other receivables 8 209,304 201,861
Inventories 9 132,002 115,400
Derivative financial instruments 10 522 60

Total current assets 364,459 340,249

Non-current assets
Trade and other receivables 8 407 202
Derivative financial instruments 10 10,036 50
Property, plant and equipment 11 7,653,921 6,893,678
Intangible assets 11 138,536 97,605
Retirement benefit obligation surplus 17 210 -

Total non-current assets 7,803,110 6,991,535

Total assets 8,167,569 7,331,784

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 12 223,798 257,304
Derivative financial instruments 10 10 -
Provisions 13 36,455 37,205
Deferred income 14 106,592 110,165

Total current liabilities 366,855 404,674

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 12 7,686 31,084
Borrowings 15 6,188,044 5,474,774
Derivative financial instruments 10 468 -
Deferred tax equivalent liabilities 16 271,567 190,309
Provisions 13 29,770 16,967
Retirement benefit obligation deficit 17 - 667
Deferred income 14 5,390 12,010

Total non-current liabilities 6,502,925 5,725,811

Total liabilities 6,869,780 6,130,485

Net assets 1,297,789 1,201,299

Equity
Contributed equity 821,239 821,239
Reserve 7,097 118
Retained earnings 469,453 379,942

Total equity 1,297,789 1,201,299

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 30 June 2013
Contributed

equity
Hedging
reserve

 Retained 
earnings

Total
equity

$’000    $’000    $’000    $’000 
At 1 July 2011 820,603 (87) 307,428 1,127,944

Comprehensive income
Profit, net of tax equivalent - - 157,131 157,131
Other comprehensive income, net of tax equivalent

Net gains on cash flow hedges - 205 - 205
Net actuarial losses on retirement benefit obligations - - (359) (359)

Total other comprehensive income, net of tax equivalent - 205 (359) (154)
Total comprehensive income - 205 156,772 156,977

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Contributions of equity 636 - - 636
Dividends provided for or paid - - (84,258) (84,258)

Total transactions with owners 636 - (84,258) (83,622)

At 30 June 2012 821,239 118 379,942 1,201,299

At 1 July 2012 821,239 118 379,942 1,201,299

Comprehensive income
Profit, net of tax equivalent - - 191,377 191,377
Other comprehensive income, net of tax equivalent

Net gains on cash flow hedges - 6,979 - 6,979
Net actuarial gains on retirement benefit obligations - - 269 269

Total other comprehensive income, net of tax equivalent - 6,979 269 7,248
Total comprehensive income - 6,979 191,646 198,625

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Contributions of equity - - - -
Dividends provided for or paid - - (102,135) (102,135)

Total transactions with owners - - (102,135) (102,135)

At 30 June 2013 821,239 7,097 469,453 1,297,789

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2013
2013 2012

Note  $’000  $’000
Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods and services tax) 1,604,749 1,545,957
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of goods and services tax) (725,943) (669,032)
Contributions to tariff equalisation fund (154,000) (181,200)
Other income 1,781 5,433

Net cash inflows from operating activities 21 726,587 701,158

Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (1,027,405) (802,611)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets 7,294 8,066

Net cash outflows from investing activities (1,020,111) (794,545)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 10,315,000 4,164,150
Repayments of borrowings (9,640,728) (3,720,257)
Interest received 985 1,309
Interest paid (279,895) (271,439)
Proceeds from contributed equity - 636
Distributions to equity holder (102,135) (84,258)

Net cash inflows from financing activities 293,227 90,141

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (297) (3,246)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the reporting year 22,928 26,174

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the reporting year 7 22,631 22,928

Non-cash investing and financing activities 22

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 Notes to the financial statements
1 Corporate information

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Basis of preparation

-
-

(b) Critical accounting estimates and judgments

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with Australian 
accounting standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) (including Australian 
interpretations) and Schedule 4 of the Act. On operation of the Act, Schedule 4 was aligned and cross referenced to the relevant 
sections of the Corporations Act 2001 .

Western Power has been classified to be a not-for-profit entity and accordingly applies the not-for-profit elections available in the 
Australian accounting standards where applicable.

New and amended accounting standards adopted
None of the new standards and amendments to standards that are mandatory for first time reporting in the current reporting year have 
affected the amounts recognised in these financial statements, nor are they likely to affect future years. However, amendments made 
to AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements  effective 1 July 2012 now require the statement of comprehensive income to show 
the items of comprehensive income grouped into those that are not permitted to be reclassified to profit or loss in a future period and 
those that may have to be reclassified if certain conditions are met.

Accrual accounting and historical cost convention

Working capital
At 30 June 2013, Western Power reported a working capital deficit of $2.396 million (30 June 2012: $64.425 million deficit). Current 
liabilities include deferred income relating to developer and customer contributions to the value of $106.592 million (30 June 2012: 
$110.165 million) which usually do not require an outflow of cash resources. When these amounts are excluded, working capital shows 
current assets exceeding current liabilities by $104.196 million (30 June 2012: $45.740 million).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian accounting standards requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets 
and liabilities. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

certain provisions and employee benefit liabilities measured at present value: notes 2(q), 2(r) and 2(s)

Going concern
These financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis. Western Power has reasonable grounds to believe it is able to 
pay its debts as and when they become due and payable, considering the unused portion of the available facility agreement (refer to 
note 3(e)(iii)) and the forecasted net profits and positive operating cash flows in 2014.

These financial statements are prepared on the accrual accounting basis and in accordance with the historical cost convention, except 
for the following:

Comparatives
Where appropriate, comparative amounts have been re-presented and re-classified to ensure comparability with the current reporting 
year.

derivative financial instruments measured at fair value: note 2(k)

Electricity Networks Corporation trading as Western Power (Western Power) is incorporated under the Electricity Corporations Act 2005 
(WA)  (the Act) and domiciled in Australia. The registered office and principal place of business is 363 Wellington Street, Perth, Western 
Australia 6000. 

Western Power is primarily involved in the building, maintenance and operation of the electricity network throughout the majority of 
southern Western Australia. (For a more detailed description of Western Power’s operations and principal activities refer to the ‘review of 
operations’ and ‘principal activities’ sections of the directors’ report included in this financial report).

These financial statements cover Western Power as an individual entity and were authorised for issue by the directors on 
3 September 2013. The directors have the power to amend and reissue the financial report.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been 
consistently applied to the reporting years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Estimates, judgements and underlying assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on Western Power and that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised and any future 
years affected.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Critical accounting estimates and judgments (continued)

-
-
-

-

(c) Foreign currency translation

(d) Revenue and income recognition

(e) Income tax equivalent 

Other income
Western Power receives other income from the provision of services incidental to the core activities of the business. Other income is 
recognised when the service is provided.

Network services revenue

Deferred tax equivalent is provided using the liability method, providing for temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax equivalent is measured 
at the tax rates expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or 
substantially enacted at the reporting date.

This financial report is presented in Australian dollars, which is the functional and presentation currency of Western Power.

Revenues are recognised to the extent it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to Western Power and the revenue can be 
measured reliably. It is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of the amount of goods and services 
tax. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenues are recognised:

The income tax equivalent expense for the reporting year comprises current and deferred tax equivalents. Income tax equivalent is 
recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Western Power receives network services revenue from the transmission and distribution of electricity, and provision of related 
services including system operations. Network services revenue is recognised when the service is provided. As at each reporting date, 
network services revenue and trade receivables include amounts attributable to ‘unbilled network tariff revenue’. Unbilled network tariff 
revenue is an estimate of electricity transported to customers that has not been billed at the reporting date.

Western Power is exempt from the Commonwealth of Australia’s Income Tax Assessment Acts but makes income tax equivalent 
payments to the Western Australian State Government. The calculation of the liability in respect of these taxes is governed by the 
Income Tax Administration Acts and the National Taxation Equivalent Regime guidelines.

Developer and customer contributions
Western Power receives developer and customer contributions toward the extension of electricity infrastructure to facilitate network 
connection. Contributions can be in the form of either cash contributions or gifted network assets. Cash contributions received are 
initially deferred and subsequently recognised as revenue when the developers or customers are connected to the network in 
accordance with the terms of the contributions. Gifted network assets are recognised as revenue at the point the assets are energised 
and are measured at their fair value. The network assets resulting from contributions received or gifted are recognised as property, 
plant and equipment and depreciated over their expected useful life.

Functional and presentation currency

The areas where estimates and assumptions are significant to the financial statements, or a higher degree of judgement or complexity 
is involved are referenced in the following notes:

Current tax equivalent is the expected tax equivalent receivable/payable on the taxable income for the reporting year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to the tax equivalent in respect of previous years.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in currency other than the functional currency of Western Power are translated into the functional currency at the rates of 
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in 
foreign currencies are retranslated at closing exchange rates. All foreign currency translation differences are recognised on a net basis 
in profit or loss, except when deferred in equity for translation differences of qualifying cash flow hedges.

Revenue (unbilled network tariff revenue): Notes 2(d), 4 revenue and other income, and 8 trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables (impairment): Notes 2(i) and 8 trade and other receivables
Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (impairment, residual values and useful lives): Notes 2(g), 2(l), 2(m) and 11 
property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
Provisions and employee benefit liabilities (present value): Notes 2(q), 2(r), 2(s), 13 provisions and 17 retirement benefit obligations

Western Power is subject to an access arrangement, which determines the revenues receivable for its network services through a 
revenue cap. No liabilities are recognised when revenues received or receivable exceed the maximum amount permitted by the 
revenue cap and adjustments will be made to future prices to reflect this over-recovery. Similarly, no assets are recognised when the 
access arrangement permits adjustments to be made to future prices in respect of an under-recovery of the revenue cap.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Income tax equivalent (continued)

(f) Leases

(g) Impairment of assets

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

(i) Trade and other receivables

(j) Inventories

(k) Derivative and hedging activities

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories is based on the weighted average cost 
principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition. Net 
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated selling costs.

Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are used to hedge exposures to movements in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commodity 
prices. Western Power uses derivative financial instruments in accordance with Board approved policy. Speculative trading of 
derivatives is strictly prohibited.

Deferred tax equivalent assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax equivalent assets 
and liabilities, and when the deferred tax equivalent balances relate to the same taxation authority.

A deferred tax equivalent asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax equivalent assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting year and are reduced to the 
extent it is no longer probable that the related tax equivalent benefit will be realised.

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are 
included in profit or loss to the extent that hedge accounting is not applied.

Leases where the lessee retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as finance leases. As at 
30 June 2013 Western Power does not have any finance leases (30 June 2012: nil).

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. 
Payments made under operating leases are expensed to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

At each reporting date, Western Power considers any indicators of impairment to its assets, that is, events or changes in 
circumstances that indicate the carrying value may not be fully recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which 
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of an asset’s value in use and its 
fair value less costs to sell. For non-financial assets, value in use is determined using the depreciated replacement cost of the asset. 
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss and, where material, are disclosed separately.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and other short-term deposits that have an original maturity of three months or less, 
net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for 
impairment. They are usually settled on 14 or 30 day payment terms, unless contractually agreed otherwise. Receivables are classified 
as current assets unless collection is not expected for more than 12 months after the reporting date.

Impairment
Trade and other receivables are determined to be impaired when objective evidence exists that Western Power will not be able to 
collect all amounts due. Objective evidence includes known financial difficulties of the debtor, and default or delinquency in payments 
(more than 30 days overdue). The amount impaired is the difference between the carrying value of the receivable and the net present 
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. Cash flows relating to short term receivables are 
not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial. Amounts impaired are recognised in profit or loss.

When a trade receivable for which an impairment provision has been recognised becomes uncollectible in a subsequent reporting year 
it is written off against the provision account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts written off are credited to profit or loss.

Financial instruments are derecognised when Western Power no longer controls the contractual rights that comprise the financial 
instrument.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Derivative and hedging activities (continued)

(l) Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation periods for categories of property, plant and equipment
Substations, transformers, poles and cables
Buildings
Meters, streetlights
Pole reinforcements, smart meters
Furniture and fittings, refurbishments
Other plant and equipment
Communications
Fleet
Computer hardware
Low value pool
Leasehold improvements

Hedge accounting

For all derivative transactions designated as a cash flow hedge, the portion of gain or loss on the hedging instrument that is determined
to be an effective hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the hedging reserve. The ineffective portion 
is recognised in profit or loss immediately. When the cash flows occur, the amount that has been deferred to equity is transferred 
either to the carrying value of the asset, in the case of non-financial assets, or reclassified to profit or loss as appropriate.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any 
cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately 
recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reported 
in equity is immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

On entering into a hedge relationship, Western Power determines whether hedge accounting is applied. Where hedge accounting 
applies, Western Power formally designates and documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, as 
well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. Western Power also documents its assessment, both at 
the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivative that is used in the hedging transaction has been and will 
continue to be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows of the hedged item.

Property, plant and equipment is recognised at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. Historical 
cost is determined as the fair value of the asset at the date of acquisition or construction and includes all expenditure directly 
attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on 
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Cost

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and labour, and any other costs, directly attributable to bringing the 
asset to a working condition for its intended use. Gifted network assets are recognised at fair value at the point the assets are 
energised.

5 - 10 years

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful economic lives presented below, making 
allowances where appropriate for residual values.

Subsequent costs are included in property, plant and equipment only when it is probable the item associated with the cost will generate 
future economic benefits and the cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amounts of items replaced are derecognised. All other 
repairs and maintenance plus minor capital assets less than $5,000 are expensed to profit and loss during the reporting year in which 
they are incurred.

Depreciation

Rehabilitation costs

45 - 50 years
40 years

20 - 25 years
15 years
10 years
10 years

6.5 - 10 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods of property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually, and adjusted as 
appropriate at the end of each reporting year, with any changes recognised as a change in accounting estimate.

4 years
3 years

Derecognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise 
from the continued use of the asset. Gains and losses arising from the derecognition of an asset are determined by comparing 
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in profit or loss.

Upon recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, the cost of the item includes the present value of the anticipated costs of 
rehabilitating the site on which it is located.

life of lease

Property, plant and equipment received on disaggregation of Western Power Corporation is depreciated over their residual useful 
economic lives. No depreciation is provided on freehold land, easements and assets in the course of construction.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Intangible assets

Amortisation periods for categories of intangible assets
Intellectual property
Software (major developments/enhancements)
Software (minor purchases/enhancements)

(n) Trade and other payables

(o) Borrowings

(p) Borrowings costs

(q) Provisions

Cost
Intangible assets represent identifiable capitalised software costs and intellectual property, and are recognised at historical cost less 
accumulated amortisation and any provision for impairment losses. Subsequent costs are included in intangible assets only when it is 
probable the item associated with the cost will generate future economic benefits and the cost can be measured reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are recognised only if an asset is created that can be identified; it is probable that the asset 
created will generate future economic benefits; and that the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Where no 
internally generated asset can be recognised the development expenditure is expensed to profit or loss.

Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful economic lives presented below, making allowances 
where appropriate for residual values.

25 years
5 - 10 years

2.5 years

Derecognition
An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use 
of the asset. Gains and losses arising from the derecognition of an asset are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount 
and are recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and amortisation methods of intangible assets are reviewed annually, and adjusted as appropriate at 
the end of each reporting year, with any changes recognised as a change in accounting estimate.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. They are usually settled 
within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities unless payment is not due for at least 12 
months after the reporting date.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless Western Power has an agreement with the lender that allows refinancing of the 
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. This includes where a forward domestic borrowing commitment exists that 
replaces the existing borrowing on the date of maturity, and where this extends the maturity of the original borrowing to greater than 12 
months after the reporting date.

Forward domestic borrowing commitments
Western Power enters into forward domestic borrowing commitments with the Western Australian Treasury Corporation (WATC)
where it agrees to borrow specified amounts in the future at a pre-determined interest rate. These borrowings are entered into with the 
objective of minimising interest rate risks, and are recognised as a derivative financial instrument in the period between entering into 
the forward lending agreement and draw down of the loan principal. Once the loan is drawn down, the principal is accounted for like 
any other borrowing.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets (being assets that necessarily 
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use) form part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed when incurred.

Capitalised borrowings costs are included in interest paid in the statement of cash flows.

Provisions are recognised when Western Power has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 
present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects the market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a 
borrowing cost.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Provisions (continued)

(r) Employee benefits

(s) Retirement benefit obligations

The present value of the defined benefit superannuation plans is based upon expected future payments and is calculated using 
discounted cash flows consistent with the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to factors including the expected future 
wages and salaries level, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using 
the Commonwealth Bond rates whose terms most closely match the terms of the related liabilities. Actuarial valuations are carried out 
at each reporting date.

Current service cost is recognised in full in profit or loss in the reporting year in which the obligation increases as a result of employee 
services. Interest cost is also recognised, although this is offset by the expected return on assets. Actuarial gains and losses arising 
from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions (including changes in the bond rate) are recognised directly in 
other comprehensive income.

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and 
will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an 
expense as they become payable.

Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit other than a defined contribution plan. A liability or asset in respect of defined 
benefit superannuation plans is recognised in the balance sheet, and is measured as the present value of the defined benefit obligation
in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date, adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains/losses, the fair value 
of any fund assets at that date and any unrecognised past service cost.

A provision for restructuring costs is recognised when a detailed and formal restructuring plan has been approved by the Board, and 
the restructuring has either commenced or has been announced publicly.

Restructuring costs

Rehabilitation costs
A provision for site rehabilitation costs is recognised when there is either a legal or constructive obligation to rehabilitate a site; the land 
is contaminated; it is probable a rehabilitation expense will be incurred; and the costs can be reliably estimated.

The amount of the provision for future rehabilitation costs is capitalised into the cost of the related plant, property and equipment, and 
depreciated over the expected useful life.

Wages and salaries, annual leave
Liabilities arising in respect of employee benefits that are expected to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are measured 
at their nominal amount based on remuneration rates that are expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liability for 
wages, salaries and annual leave is recognised in other payables. The liability for all other short-term employee benefits is recognised 
in the provision for employee benefits.

Long service leave
The liability for unconditional long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits, and measured as the present 
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the 
projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to factors including the expected future wages and salaries levels and settlement 
dates. Expected future payments are discounted using the Commonwealth Bond rates whose terms most closely match the terms of 
the related liabilities. Actuarial valuations are carried out at each reporting date.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at 
least 12 months after the reporting date, regardless of when actual settlement is expected to occur.

Defined contribution plans

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when Western Power is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility of 
withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to terminate employment before the normal retirement date. Termination benefits for voluntary 
redundancies are recognised where Western Power has made an offer encouraging voluntary redundancy; it is probable that the offer 
will be accepted; and the number of acceptances can be reliably estimated. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of 
the reporting date are discounted to present value.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Contributed equity and reserves

(u) Dividends

(v) Goods and services tax (GST)

(w) New accounting standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Title and topic Issued

-

-

-
-

-

i

ii
iii

iv
v
vi

- The standard is not applicable to Western Power until the reporting year ended 30 June 
2014. The full impact, if any, is still to be assessed.

Revised AASB 119 Employee Benefits  and AASB 2011-10 Amendments to AAS arising 
from AASB 119 (September 2011)

the recognition of all remeasurements of defined benefit liabilities/assets 
immediately in other comprehensive income (removal of the so-called ‘corridor’ 
method)
the immediate recognition of all past service cost in profit or loss
the calculation of a net interest expense or income by applying the discount rate to 
the net defined benefit liability or asset. This replaces the expected return on plan 
assets that is currently included in profit or loss
the additional disclosures for defined benefit liabilities/assets
the earlier recognition of termination benefits
the distinction between short-term and long-term employee benefits

1 July 2013

Requires:

1 July 2013

No impactExplains how to measure fair value and aims to enhance fair value disclosures.
The standard is not applicable to Western Power until the reporting year ended 30 June 
2014. The full impact, if any, is still to be assessed.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement  and AASB 2011-8 Amendments to AAS arising from 
AASB 113 September

2011

No impactSeptember
2011

Addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and 
financial liabilities.
The standard is not applicable to Western Power until the reporting year ended 30 June 
2016. The full impact, if any, is still to be assessed.

December
2009 No impact1 July 2015

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, 
or payable to, the taxation authority is included in other receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are 
recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flows.

Contributed equity
Contributed equity represents the initial and subsequent contributions made by Western Power’s owner, the Western Australian State 
Government. The owner’s initial contribution comprised the assets of Western Power Corporation, after deducting liabilities, transferred 
to Western Power on 1 April 2006. The owner has made subsequent contributions for the edge of grid and regional power investment 
programs. No shares have been allotted.

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve represents the effective portion of the cumulative net changes in fair value of cash flow hedging instruments 
related to hedged transactions that have not yet matured.

The following accounting standards and interpretations are not mandatory (or applied) in the 30 June 2013 reporting year, but have 
been identified as those which may impact Western Power in the reporting year of initial application.

Dividends are provided for in the reporting year in which the dividends recommended by the Board are accepted by the Minister for 
Energy, with the concurrence of the Treasurer of Western Australia.

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not recoverable from 
the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Effective date to 
Western Power

Impact to Western 
Power in 2013
reporting year

AASB 9 Financial Instruments , AASB 2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards (AAS) arising from AASB 9 , AASB 2010-7 Amendments to AAS arising from 
AASB 9 (December 2010)  and AASB 2012-6 Amendments to AAS - mandatory effective 
date of AASB 9 and transition disclosures
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
3 Financial risk management

(a) Overview

 (i) market risk (including interest rate risk, currency risk and commodity risk);
 (ii) credit risk; and
 (iii) liquidity risk.

(b)

Current
Non-

current Total Current
Non-

current Total
Note $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000  

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 22,631 - 22,631 22,928 - 22,928
Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments) 8 190,985 407 191,392 195,554 202 195,756
Derivative financial instruments 10 522 10,036 10,558 60 50 110
Total financial assets 214,138 10,443 224,581 218,542 252 218,794
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 12 223,798 7,686 231,484 257,304 31,084 288,388

Trade payables and accruals 130,458 - 130,458 189,475 - 189,475
Other payables 90,070 - 90,070 62,991 22,760 85,751
Contributory extension scheme 3,270 7,686 10,956 4,838 8,324 13,162

Borrowings 15 - 6,188,044 6,188,044 - 5,474,774 5,474,774
Domestic currency loans - 6,133,644 6,133,644 - 5,427,636 5,427,636
Accrued interest - 54,400 54,400 - 47,138 47,138

Derivative financial instruments 10 10 468 478 - - -
Total financial liabilities 223,808 6,196,198 6,420,006 257,304 5,505,858 5,763,162

(c) Determination of fair value

Carrying
amount

Fair
value

Carrying
amount

Fair
value

Note $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000  
Contributory extension scheme (current financial liabilities) 12 3,270 2,403 4,838 3,930
Contributory extension scheme (non-current financial liabilities) 12 7,686 10,635 8,324 11,758
Domestic currency loans (non-current financial liabilities) 15 6,133,644 6,363,412 5,427,636 5,776,337

Trade and other receivables/payables

Derivative financial instruments

Contributory extension scheme

Domestic currency loans 

2013 2012
WATC yield curve
BBSW reference rate
AUD interest rate swap curve

Other than disclosed below, the fair values of Western Power's financial assets and financial liabilities are assumed to approximate 
the above carrying amounts. 

20122013

The fair value of borrowings is calculated by discounting the expected future principal and interest cash flows. The interest rates used 
for discounting are based on the WATC yield curve for securities, and a combination of the bank bill swap (BBSW) reference rate and 
Australian dollar (AUD) interest rate swap curve for money market transactions. 

The fair value of receivables/payables with a remaining life of less than one year is deemed to be the notional amount. The fair value 
of all other receivables/payables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the 
reporting date unless the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is determined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged, or liability 
settled in a current transaction between willing parties, after allowing for transaction costs. It is based on market prices at the 
reporting date (note 3(d)).

2.8% - 4.6%
2.8% - 2.9%
2.7% - 4.0%

3.2% - 4.1%
3.6% - 3.4%

The principal financial risks arising from Western Power's operations are:

Western Power uses a range of financial instruments to support the operations of the business. The carrying amounts recognised at 
the reporting date are presented below:

Financial assets and liabilities

Management of these risks is carried out in accordance with Board approved policies that are reviewed annually. Further details 
regarding Western Power's exposure to the above risks, including the objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing 
the risks, and the quantitative disclosures are presented in this note.

The fair value of the contributory extension scheme is calculated by discounting the expected future payments at the same interest 
rates used to value domestic currency loans. The average interest rate used for discounting at 30 June 2013 is 5.9 per cent (30 June 
2012: 5.7 per cent). 

2013 2012

4.9% - 5.7%
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
3 Financial risk management (continued)

(d) Fair value hierarchy

Level 1: 
Level 2:

Level 3:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000  

Financial assets
Derivative financial instruments - 10,558 - 10,558 - 110 - 110
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments - 478 - 478 - - - -

(e) Financial risk factors 
(i) Market risk

Interest rate risk

Forward domestic borrowing commitments

Currency risk

2013 2012
US

Dollars
US

Dollars
$’000 $’000

Forward exchange contracts maturing:
within one year 968 1,563
later than one year but within five years 804 1,608

The weighted average foreign exchange rate is 0.9947 (30 June 2012: 1.0153). 

Commodity risk

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

2013

Forward domestic borrowing commitments allow Western Power to effectively lock-in the interest rate on all or part of known future 
borrowing obligations, providing greater certainty around borrowings and the associated borrowing costs. 

Currency risk is the risk to Western Power that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk in Western Power arises from future commercial transactions denominated in 
foreign currency, principally for the purchase of capital equipment. 

2012

Interest rate risk is the risk to Western Power that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate risk in Western Power arises from borrowing obligations. 

Western Power has an interest rate risk management strategy which aims to mitigate significant exposures to interest rate 
movements. Debt portfolio structure guidelines are set to manage the interest rate risks arising from Western Power's regulatory 
environment. Debt maturity guidelines are set to ensure that Western Power is not exposed to excess risk from interest rate 
volatility. Interest rate forecasts are continuously monitored and, where appropriate, exposures to interest rates are managed 
through the use of Board approved hedging instruments such as interest rate swaps and forward domestic borrowing 
commitments.

Western Power’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date is presented below:

Commodity risk is the risk to Western Power that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in commodity prices. Commodity risk in Western Power arises from variability in commodity prices contained in 
commercial transactions and is managed through the use of Board approved hedging instruments such as forward commodity 
contracts.

Inputs from the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Western Power’s foreign exchange risk management strategy aims to mitigate significant exposures through the use of Board 
approved hedging instruments such as forward exchange contracts. 

Western Power has not entered into any financial instruments to manage commodity risk in the current reporting year (30 June 
2012: nil).

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

The assets and liabilities of Western Power measured and recognised at fair value as at the reporting date are presented in the 
following table, by their valuation method. The different levels are defined as:

Market risk is the risk to Western Power that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Western Power has exposures to movements in interest rates, foreign exchange rates and commodity 
markets.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
3 Financial risk management (continued)

(e) Financial risk factors (continued)
(i) Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Carrying
amount
$’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000 

At 30 June 2013
Cash and cash equivalents 22,631 227 (227) - - - - - -
Trade and other receivables 191,392 - - - - - - - -
Derivatives-interest rate swaps 998 1,000 (1,000) 5,085 (3,089) - - - -
Derivatives-FX contracts 153 - - - - - - (21) 370
Derivatives-forward borrowings1 9,407 - - 41,727 (22,912) - - - -
Total financial assets 224,581 1,227 (1,227) 46,812 (26,001) - - (21) 370
Trade and other payables 231,484 - - - - - - - -
Borrowings2 6,188,044 (1,150) 1,150 - - - - - -
Derivatives-forward borrowings1 478 - - 4,705 (5,662) - - - -
Total financial liabilities 6,420,006 (1,150) 1,150 4,705 (5,662) - - - -

At 30 June 2012
Cash and cash equivalents 22,928 235 (235) - - - - - -
Trade and other receivables 195,756 - - - - - - - -
Derivatives-interest rate swaps - - - - - - - - -
Derivatives-FX contracts 110 - - - - - - (282) 344
Derivatives-forward borrowings - - - - - - - - -
Total financial assets 218,794 235 (235) - - - - (282) 344
Trade and other payables 288,388 - - - - - - - -
Borrowings2 5,474,774 (5,600) 5,600 - - - - - -
Derivatives-forward borrowings - - - - - - - - -
Total financial liabilities 5,763,162 (5,600) 5,600 - - - - - -

1

2

(ii) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to Western Power if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to discharge its 
contractual obligation. The maximum exposure to credit risk for Western Power is best represented by the carrying amounts of 
financial assets recognised in the balance sheet as at the reporting date (note 3(b)). 

Western Power generally provides credit on 14 or 30 day payment terms, unless contractually agreed otherwise. Credit risk is 
actively managed through the use of credit ratings, approved policies and monthly reporting to the Board. Western Power 
manages the quality of financial assets and its concentrations of credit risk by reference to external credit ratings, where available, 
or to historic information on counterparty default rates. Unconditional bank guarantees or cash deposits are also obtained as 
security where necessary. 

Impact on 
post-tax profit

+/- 10%

The sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk is based on Western Power's floating rate borrowings of $115.5 million (30 June 2012: $560.0 million). The majority 

The following table summarises the potential impact to the annual post-tax profit and other comprehensive income of Western 
Power due to movements in interest rate risk and foreign currency rate risk. The assumptions used are based on management’s 
best estimate of a reasonably possible movement given current market conditions.

Impact on other 
comprehensive income

+/- 10%

Interest rate risk

The sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk is based on Western Power's forward domestic borrowing commitments of $1,060.0 million. These commitments are 
entered into to effectively lock-in the interest rate on all or part of known future borrowing obligations, and are recognised as derivative financial instruments in
the periods between entering into the forward lending agreements and draw downs of the loan principal.

of Western Power's borrowings are at fixed interest rates as allowable under the Board approved treasury management framework.

Western Power uses a formalised process to manage the collection of debts which allows appropriate legal action to be taken 
where necessary. Where there is objective evidence trade receivables will not be collectable, a provision for impairment is 
recognised (note 8(b)).

Foreign currency risk
Impact on other 

comprehensive income
+/- 1%

Impact on
post-tax profit

+/- 1%

FINANCIAL REPORT

WESTERN POWER ANNUAL REPORT 2013 
                               70



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
3 Financial risk management (continued)

(e) Financial risk factors (continued)
Liquidity Risk

Financing arrangements

Maturities of financial liabilities

Within one
year

Between
one and five

years
Later than
five years

Total
contractual
cash flows

(undiscounted)
Carrying
amount

Note $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000 
At 30 June 2013
Forward domestic borrowing commitments1 10 - - - - 478
Total derivative financial liabilities - - - - 478

Trade and other payables 12 222,931 5,929 7,330 236,190 231,484
   Trade payables and accruals 130,458 - - 130,458 130,458
   Other payables 90,070 - - 90,070 90,070
   Contributory extension scheme 2,403 5,929 7,330 15,662 10,956
Borrowings 15 1,738,905 4,676,208 2,162,789 8,577,902 6,188,044
   Fixed rate borrowings 1,459,731 3,185,647 269,762 4,915,140 4,303,488
   Fixed to floating rate borrowings 19,900 588,339 - 608,239 500,595
   Floating rate notes 4,027 34,004 114,053 152,084 115,935
   CPI linked debt 254,108 518,624 859,893 1,632,625 1,268,026
   Forward domestic borrowing commitments1 15(b) 1,139 349,594 919,081 1,269,814 -
Total non-derivatives financial liabilities 1,961,836 4,682,137 2,170,119 8,814,092 6,419,528

At 30 June 2012
Forward domestic borrowing commitments 10 - - - - -
Total derivative financial liabilities - - - - -

Trade and other payables 12 256,396 28,817 8,968 294,181 288,388
   Trade payables and accruals 189,475 - - 189,475 189,475
   Other payables 62,991 22,760 - 85,751 85,751
   Contributory extension scheme 3,930 6,057 8,968 18,955 13,162
Borrowings 15 1,651,248 2,876,720 2,410,207 6,938,175 5,474,774
   Fixed rate borrowings 1,058,148 2,246,717 980,075 4,284,940 3,618,255
   Fixed to floating rate borrowings - - - - -
   Floating rate notes 466,234 33,123 117,181 616,538 562,988
   CPI linked debt 115,678 525,350 896,281 1,537,309 1,293,531
   Forward domestic borrowing commitments 15(b) 11,188 71,530 416,670 499,388 -
Total non-derivatives financial liabilities 1,907,644 2,905,537 2,419,175 7,232,356 5,763,162

1

(iii)
Liquidity risk is the risk Western Power will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities as they fall 
due. Western Power is governed by the treasury management framework which requires active management of cash and ensures 
adequate facilities are in place to satisfy ongoing funding requirements.

The following table presents Western Power's contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments 
and excluding the impact of netting arrangements. The table also indicates the periods in which the cash flows associated with 
derivatives that are cash flow hedges are expected to occur.

Borrowing facilities are in Australian dollars. Funds may be drawn at any time with an average maturity of 3.4 years (30 June 2012: 
3.0 years). 

Western Power has a borrowing facility with the WATC with a limit of $7,000.000 million (30 June 2012: $7,000.000 million). As at 
30 June 2013 the unused portion of this facility was $866.356 million (30 June 2012: $1,572.364 million). The planned usage of 
this facility is governed by the Strategic Development Plan (SDP) agreed with the Minister for Energy. The maximum amount of 
borrowings permitted by the Department of Treasury (DoT) for the year to 30 June 2014 is currently $6,920.960 million (30 June 
2013 limit: currently $6,133.890 million). Actual borrowings at 30 June 2013 were $0.246 million below the formal DoT borrowing 
limit (30 June 2012: equalled formal DoT borrowing limit). 

There are no contractual cash flows for forward domestic borrowing commitments in the period between entering into the forward lending agreement and draw 
down of the loan principal. The contractual cash flows on draw down of the agreed loan principal are presented in the borrowings section of this table
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
4 Revenue and other income

(a) Revenue from rendering of services
2013 2012

Note $’000    $’000
Network services revenue:
Transmission tariff services 4(b) 387,303 387,876
Distribution tariff services 4(b) 835,207 804,783
Other services 133,152 116,532

1,355,662 1,309,191

Developer and customer contributions 177,190 169,646
Total revenue from rendering of services 1,532,852 1,478,837

(b) Unbilled network tariff revenue

(c) Other income
2013 2012

Note $’000    $’000
Insurance recoveries 5(d) 2,076 -
Rent 1,708 1,546
Interest 985 1,309
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets - 3,065
Other 395 714

5,164 6,634

5 Expenses

(a) Employee related expenses
2013 2012

Note $’000    $’000
Wages, salaries and other employee benefits (193,474) (185,703)
Superannuation:
Defined contribution plans (33,011) (30,069)
Defined benefit plans 17(d) (81) (113)

(33,092) (30,182)

Total employee related expenses (226,566) (215,885)

(b) Depreciation and amortisation expense
2013 2012

Note $’000    $’000
Depreciation expense:
Buildings 11(a) (3,605) (3,125)
Plant and equipment 11(a) (212,827) (188,037)
Capitalised depreciation 11(d) 3,865 2,974

(212,567) (188,188)

Amortisation expense:
Computer software 11(a) (18,658) (15,493)
Intellectual property 11(a) (1,636) (1,212)

(20,294) (16,705)

Total depreciation and amortisation expense (232,861) (204,893)

Profit before income tax equivalent includes the following specific expenses:

Transmission and distribution network tariff revenue includes $161.396 million for unbilled services (30 June 2012: $153.492 million). 
This is consistent with the revenue recognition methodology adopted in prior years and reflects the billing profile of Western Power 
customers. The unbilled network tariff revenue is calculated using projected revenue assumptions based on historical and budget data
for unread, and as such unbilled meters as at the end of the reporting year.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
5 Expenses (continued)

(c) Other expenses
2013 2012

Note $’000    $’000
Tariff equalisation fund (154,000) (181,200)
Insurance (13,489) (19,922)
Operating lease costs (5,672) (6,362)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets 5(d) (3,151) -
(Impairment)/reversal of impairment of trade receivables 8(b) (652) 1,917
Remuneration of auditors (376) (360)
Other (143) (12)

(177,483) (205,939)

(d) Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

(e) Remuneration of auditors

2013 2012
$’000 $’000

Audit services
Annual audit of financial statements and other assurance services (369) (369)

Non-audit services
Certification of regional distribution headworks refund scheme - (4)

Total remuneration of auditors (369) (373)

(f) Borrowing costs
2013 2012

Note $’000    $’000
Domestic currency loans (317,595) (284,049)
Unwinding of discount on contributory extension scheme (1,086) (1,180)
Currency and interest rate swaps  (97) 68
Other (114) 15
Capitalised borrowing costs 11(c) 7,019 6,396

(311,873) (278,750)

During the reporting year the following fees were paid, or due and payable, for services provided by the Office of the Auditor General:

The 'net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets' in 2013 includes a loss of $3.324 million for a 
transformer damaged at the Muja substation. An insurance recovery of $1.106 million has been recognised in 'other income' in 
relation to this asset.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
6 Income tax equivalent expense

(a) Income tax equivalent expense recognised in statement of comprehensive income

Current Deferred Total Current Deferred Total
$’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000  

Income tax equivalent expense - (79,928) (79,928) - (68,341) (68,341)
Adjustment for income tax equivalent of prior years - 1,825 1,825 - 106 106

- (78,103) (78,103) - (68,235) (68,235)

Income tax equivalent expense is attributable to:
Profit for the reporting year (78,103) (68,235)

Deferred income tax equivalent (revenue)/expense included in income tax equivalent expense comprises:
Increase in deferred tax equivalent assets (note 16) 42,258 7,991
Increase in deferred tax equivalent liabilities (note 16) (120,361) (76,226)
Total income tax equivalent expense (78,103) (68,235)

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax equivalent expense to prima facie tax equivalent payable
2013 2012

$’000 $’000
Profit before income tax equivalent expense 269,480 225,366

Income tax equivalent at the Australian tax rate of 30% (30 June 2012: 30%) (80,844) (67,610)
Income tax equivalent effect of amounts not deductible/(taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Non deductable expenses (113) (731)
Research and development incentives 1,029 -
Current income tax equivalent expense (79,928) (68,341)
Adjustment for deferred tax equivalent of prior years 1,825 106
Total income tax equivalent expense (78,103) (68,235)

(c) Tax equivalent expense recognised directly in equity
2013 2012

$’000 $’000
Other temporary differences - (16)

- (16)

(d) Tax equivalent expense relating to items of other comprehensive income
2013 2012

$’000 $’000
Valuation adjustment on cash flow hedges (2,991) (88)
Actuarial adjustment on retirement benefit obligations (164) 113

(3,155) 25

7 Cash and cash equivalents
2013 2012

$’000 $’000
Current
Cash at bank 22,631 22,928

22,631 22,928

2013

Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months depending on the immediate cash requirements 
of Western Power and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates. As at 30 June 2013 Western Power did not have any short-
term deposits (30 June 2012: nil).

2012

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
8 Trade and other receivables

Current
Non-

current Total Current
Non-

current Total
Note $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000  

Trade receivables 8(a) 188,153 - 188,153 194,586 - 194,586
Provision for impairment of trade receivables 8(b) (1,296) - (1,296) (1,130) - (1,130)

186,857 - 186,857 193,456 - 193,456

Prepayments 18,319 - 18,319 6,307 - 6,307
Other receivables 4,128 407 4,535 2,098 202 2,300

209,304 407 209,711 201,861 202 202,063

(a) Unbilled trade receivables

(b) Impaired trade receivables

2013 2012
$’000 $’000

At 1 July 1,130 4,459
Charged in the reporting year:
Provision for impairment recognised during the reporting year 652 151
Provision for impairment reversed - (2,068)

652 (1,917)
Receivables previously provided for and written off during the reporting year as uncollectable (486) (1,412)
At 30 June 1,296 1,130

(c) Trade receivables past due but not impaired

2013 2012
$’000 $’000

between 1-59 days 2,713 6,420
between 60-89 days 268 988
more than 90 days 3,770 2,592

6,751 10,000

The ageing analysis of trade receivables past due but not impaired is presented below:

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables during the reporting year are presented below:

20122013

Trade receivables include unbilled network tariff revenue of $161.396 million (30 June 2012: $153.492 million).

As at 30 June 2013 trade receivables with a nominal value of $1.296 million (30 June 2012: $1.130 million) were recognised as 
impaired and fully provided for in the 'provision for impairment of trade receivables'. The creation and release of this provision is 
recognised in 'other expenses' in the statement of comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the provision are generally written off 
when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.

There is no collateral security in place in respect of these amounts. 

As at 30 June 2013 trade receivables of $6.751 million (30 June 2012: $10.000 million) were past due but not impaired. These 
receivables relate to a number of independent customers for which there is no recent history of default and hence, no provision of 
impairment is deemed necessary.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
9 Inventories

2013 2012
$’000 $’000

Current
Raw materials and stores 132,002 115,400

132,002 115,400

Inventory expense

10 Derivative financial instruments

Current
Non-

current Total Current
Non-

current Total
Note $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000  

Assets
Interest rate swaps 10(a) - 998 998 - - -
Forward exchange contracts 10(b) 90 63 153 60 50 110
Forward domestic borrowing commitments 10(c) 432 8,975 9,407 - - -

522 10,036 10,558 60 50 110

Liabilities
Forward domestic borrowing commitments 10(c) 10 468 478 - - -

10 468 478 - - -

(a) Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges

(b) Forward exchange contracts - cash flow hedges

(c) Forward domestic borrowing commitments - cash flow hedges
Western Power has entered into forward domestic borrowing commitments in order to hedge against floating interest rate exposures 
arising from future borrowing obligations. 

Western Power has entered into forward exchange contracts in order to hedge against foreign exchange risk arising from the future 
purchase of capital equipment in foreign currencies. 

Western Power has entered into interest rate swaps in order to hedge against floating interest rate exposures arising from borrowing 
obligations.

The write-down of inventory to net realisable value recognised as expense during the year ended 30 June 2013 amounted to $3.800 
million (30 June 2012: $0.913 million). The expense has been recognised in 'materials and services' in the statement of comprehensive 
income.

2013

Inventories recognised as expense during the year ended 30 June 2013 amounted to $60.206 million (30 June 2012: $63.126 million).

2012
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
11 Property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

$’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000 
Cost 132,128 153,948 7,945,331 565,255 8,796,662 243,619 11,634 255,253
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation - (31,273) (1,111,468) - (1,142,741) (112,848) (3,869) (116,717)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2013 132,128 122,675 6,833,863 565,255 7,653,921 130,771 7,765 138,536

Cost 123,916 83,716 7,077,790 555,605 7,841,027 183,500 11,646 195,146
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation - (22,431) (924,918) - (947,349) (95,308) (2,233) (97,541)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2012 123,916 61,285 6,152,872 555,605 6,893,678 88,192 9,413 97,605

(a)

$’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000 
Carrying amount at 30 June 2011 123,595 76,920 5,580,550 453,745 6,234,810 69,670 7,474 77,144
Cost
Additions (notes (b),(c)) - - 1,447 911,130 912,577 - - -
Transfers to inventory - - - (20,014) (20,014) - - -
Transfers in/(out) 354 (14,239) 765,959 (789,256) (37,182) 34,015 3,167 37,182
Issues of strategic spares - - (374) - (374) - - -
Disposals (33) - (26,865) - (26,898) - - -
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation
Transfers (in)/out - 1,729 (1,713) - 16 - (16) (16)
Issues of strategic spares - - 8 - 8 - - -
Disposals - - 21,897 - 21,897 - - -
Depreciation and amortisation (note (d)) - (3,125) (188,037) - (191,162) (15,493) (1,212) (16,705)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2012 123,916 61,285 6,152,872 555,605 6,893,678 88,192 9,413 97,605

Carrying amount at 30 June 2012 123,916 61,285 6,152,872 555,605 6,893,678 88,192 9,413 97,605
Cost
Additions (notes (b),(c)) - - - 1,068,153 1,068,153 - - -
Transfers to inventory - - - (19,780) (19,780) - - -
Transfers in/(out) 8,948 74,131 894,419 (1,038,723) (61,225) 61,237 (12) 61,225
Issues of strategic spares - - (28) - (28) - - -
Disposals (736) (3,899) (26,850) - (31,485) (1,118) - (1,118)
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation
Transfers (in)/out - (8,799) 8,799 - - - - -
Issues of strategic spares - - - - - - - -
Disposals - 3,562 17,478 - 21,040 1,118 - 1,118
Depreciation and amortisation (note (d)) - (3,605) (212,827) - (216,432) (18,658) (1,636) (20,294)
Carrying amount at 30 June 2013 132,128 122,675 6,833,863 565,255 7,653,921 130,771 7,765 138,536

(b) Contributed assets

(c) Capitalised borrowing costs

(d) Depreciation and amortisation

Intellectual
property

Total
intangible

assets

Plant and
equipment

Depreciation and amortisation represent charges to the 'depreciation and amortisation expense' in the statement of comprehensive 
income of $232.861 million (30 June 2012: $204.893 million), together with capitalised depreciation for fleet assets used in the course 
of construction of $3.865 million (30 June 2012: $2.974 million). 

Total
plant and

equipment
Freehold

land
Plant and

equipment
Computer

software

Total
plant and

equipment
Freehold

land Buildings

Works
under

construction

Western Power receives non-cash capital contributions in the form of gifted network assets. The fair value of gifted network assets 
included in additions to works under construction in the reporting year was $57.585 million (30 June 2012: $66.651 million). 

Works
under

construction

Movements in each class of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets during the reporting year are presented below:

Additions include borrowing costs of $7.019 million (30 June 2012: $6.396 million) attributable to assets in the course of construction, 
and capitalised in the reporting year at a weighted average interest rate of 5.5 per cent (30 June 2012: 5.9 per cent). 

Computer
software

Total
intangible

assets

Intellectual
propertyBuildings
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
12 Trade and other payables

Current
Non-

current Total Current
Non-

current Total
Note $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000  

Trade payables and accruals 130,458 - 130,458 189,475 - 189,475
Other payables 90,070 - 90,070 62,991 22,760 85,751
Contributory extension scheme 12(a) 3,270 7,686 10,956 4,838 8,324 13,162

223,798 7,686 231,484 257,304 31,084 288,388

(a) Contributory extension scheme

13 Provisions

Current
Non-

current Total Current
Non-

current Total
Note $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000  

Employee benefits:
Long service leave 13(c) 33,867 19,237 53,104 33,632 15,751 49,383
Other 286 - 286 2,055 - 2,055

34,153 19,237 53,390 35,687 15,751 51,438
Rehabilitation costs 328 8,046 8,374 643 1,216 1,859
Environmental costs 13(a) 1,974 2,487 4,461 875 - 875

36,455 29,770 66,225 37,205 16,967 54,172

(a) Environmental costs

(b)
Movements in each class of provision during the reporting year, other than employee benefits, are presented below:

Dividends

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
At 30 June 2012 - - 1,859 875
Provided for in the reporting year 102,135 - 6,967 4,239
Charged in the reporting year (102,135) - (452) (653)
At 30 June 2013 - - 8,374 4,461

(c) Amounts not expected to be settled within the next 12 months

2013 2012
$’000 $’000

Current
Long service leave expected to be settled within 12 months 5,145 5,013
Long service leave expected to be settled after 12 months 28,722 28,619

33,867 33,632

Movements in provisions

Environmental
costs

The long service leave benefits reported as current because Western Power does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement, 
but that based on past experience are not expected to be taken or paid within the next 12 months, are presented below:

Rehabilitation
costs

Restructuring
costs

20122013

2012

Environmental provisions relate to estimated costs on essential safety expenditure.

2013

Contributory extension scheme payables represent contributions received from customers to extend specific electricity supplies. 
These non-interest bearing deposits are refunded at the end of the contribution period unless other customers connect to the 
extensions. By 2023, when the scheme finishes, all scheme members will have had their contributions refunded.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
14 Deferred income

Current
Non-

current Total Current
Non-

current Total
$’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000  

Deferred income 106,592 5,390 111,982 110,165 12,010 122,175

Movements in deferred income
Movements in deferred income during the reporting year are presented below:

2013 2012
$’000 $’000

At 1 July 122,175 89,025
Contributions in the reporting year 121,734 141,234
Earned in the reporting year (131,927) (108,084)
At 30 June 111,982 122,175

15 Borrowings
2013 2012

Note $’000    $’000
Non-current1

Domestic currency loans 15(a) 6,133,644 5,427,636
Accrued interest 54,400 47,138

6,188,044 5,474,774

1

i.

ii.

(a) Domestic currency loans

(b) Forward domestic borrowing commitments

2013 2012

A master lending agreement with the WATC, an entity owned by the Western Australian State Government, that allows Western 
Power to refinance all or any part of maturing debt at regular intervals.

Deferred income relates to contributions received in advance from developers and customers (note 2(d)).

The approval of Western Power's forecast borrowing requirements for the next four years, including no repayment of amounts 
classified as non-current above, within the Western Australian State Budget handed down on 8 August 2013.

Non-current domestic currency loans of $6,133.644 million (30 June 2012: $5,427.636 million) includes an amount of $1,483.747 million 
(30 June 2012: $1,427.813 million) that will become due and payable during the 2014 reporting year. It is Western Power's expectation 
and discretion that this amount will be refinanced under the master lending agreement rather than repaid, and therefore has been 
classified as non-current. This is supported by: 

Western Power's domestic currency loans are all provided by the WATC. The financial liabilities incurred or assumed by the WATC 
are guaranteed by the Treasurer of Western Australia on behalf of the state.

Western Power is able to enter into forward domestic borrowing commitments with the WATC to manage interest rate risks. Forward 
domestic borrowing commitments can be either fixed or floating, depending on the risk being managed. As at 30 June 2013 Western 
Power had 53 forward domestic borrowing commitments (30 June 2012: nine) with an aggregate principal value of $1,060.0 million 
(30 June 2012: $410.0 million).
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
16 Deferred tax equivalent liabilities

The balance of deferred tax equivalent assets and liabilities comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Deferred
tax asset

Deferred
tax liability

Net (liability
less asset)

Deferred
tax asset

Deferred
tax liability

Net (liability
less asset)

$’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000  
Non-current
Property, plant and equipment (PPE), and intangible assets - 367,751 367,751 - 244,073 244,073
Contributory extension scheme - 1,412 1,412 - 1,738 1,738
Provisions for employee benefits 27,346 - (27,346) 26,418 - (26,418)
Actuarial adjustment on retirement benefit obligations 116 - (116) 208 - (208)
Tax equivalent losses 55,873 - (55,873) 24,329 - (24,329)
Non refundable research and development (R&D) tax offsets 6,936 - (6,936) - - -
Other temporary differences 7,325 - (7,325) 4,547 - (4,547)
Total deferred tax equivalent 97,596 369,163 271,567 55,502 245,811 190,309

Set-off deferred tax equivalent assets pursuant to set-off provisions (97,596) (97,596) - (55,502) (55,502) -
Net deferred tax equivalent - 271,567 271,567 - 190,309 190,309

Expected to be recovered/(settled) within 12 months 24,487 - (24,487) 25,400 194 (25,206)
Expected to be recovered after more than 12 months 73,109 369,163 296,054 30,102 245,617 215,515

97,596 369,163 271,567 55,502 245,811 190,309

(a) Movements in deferred tax equivalent assets
Movements in deferred tax equivalent assets during the reporting year are presented below:

Provisions for
employee

benefits

Actuarial adj.
on retirement

benefit
obligations

Tax
equivalent

losses

Non
refundable

R&D tax
offsets

Other
temporary

differences

Deferred tax
equivalent

asset
$’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000

At 1 July 2011 23,694 177 19,717 - 3,810 47,398
Charged to profit or loss 2,724 (82) 5,277 - 737 8,656
Charged to other comprehensive income - 113 - - - 113
Adjustment to income tax equivalent provided in prior years - - (665) - - (665)
At 30 June 2012 26,418 208 24,329 - 4,547 55,502
Charged to profit or loss 638 - 31,934 4,116 3,027 39,715
Charged to other comprehensive income - (164) - - - (164)
Adjustment to income tax equivalent provided in prior years 290 72 (390) 2,820 (249) 2,543
At 30 June 2013 27,346 116 55,873 6,936 7,325 97,596

(b) Movements in deferred tax equivalent liabilities
Movements in deferred tax equivalent liabilities during the reporting year are presented below:

PPE, and
intangible

assets

Contributory
extension

scheme

Deferred tax
equivalent

liability
$’000    $’000    $’000

At 1 July 2011 167,389 2,092 169,481
Charged to profit or loss 77,455 (458) 76,997
Charged to other comprehensive income - 88 88
Adjustment to income tax equivalent provided in prior years (771) - (771)
Charged directly to equity - 16 16
At 30 June 2012 244,073 1,738 245,811
Charged to profit or loss 119,969 (326) 119,643
Charged to other comprehensive income 2,991 - 2,991
Adjustment to income tax equivalent provided in prior years 718 - 718
At 30 June 2013 367,751 1,412 369,163

2013 2012
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
17 Retirement benefit obligations

2013 2012
Note $’000    $’000

Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligations 17(b) 334 525
Fair value of prepaid unfunded defined benefit obligations 17(c) (378) -
Present value of funded defined benefit obligations 17(b) 1,559 1,799
Fair value of plan assets 17(c) (1,725) (1,657)
Recognised (asset)/liability for defined benefit obligations (210) 667

(a) Defined benefit obligations
Unfunded

Funded

2013 2012
$’000 $’000

Equity securities 966 1,061
Property 207 182
Bonds 224 149
Other securities 242 232
Cash 86 33

1,725 1,657

(b)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations during the reporting year are presented below:

Unfunded Funded Total Unfunded Funded Total
$’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000  

At 1 July 525 1,799 2,324 637 1,346 1,983
Amounts transferred in - - - - 184 184
Current service cost 123 - 123 128 - 128
Interest cost 15 53 68 20 71 91
Actuarial movement for the reporting year 196 (139) 57 111 231 342
Benefits paid (525) (154) (679) (371) (33) (404)
Net liability at 30 June 334 1,559 1,893 525 1,799 2,324

(c) Movements in plan assets
Movements in the plan assets during the reporting year are presented below:

Unfunded Funded Total Unfunded Funded Total
$’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000  

At 1 July - 1,657 1,657 - 1,386 1,386
Employer contributions 525 - 525 371 144 515
Amounts transferred in - - - - 184 184
Benefits paid by the plan (525) (154) (679) (371) (33) (404)
Expected return on plan assets - 110 110 - 106 106
Actuarial movement for the reporting year 378 112 490 - (130) (130)
Fair value of plan assets at 30 June 378 1,725 2,103 - 1,657 1,657

The Pension Scheme is closed to new members. Western Power has settled its liability in respect of past service entitlements to 
members of this fund with total contributions of $39.283 million to the Government Employees Superannuation Board (30 June 2012: 
$37.410 million). This has resulted in an asset of $0.378 million representing a prepayment of unfunded defined benefit obligations. 

Western Power also funds a defined benefit plan for six members administered by AustralianSuper (30 June 2012: seven members). 
At 30 June 2013 the fair value of the plan assets attributable to these members exceeded the obligations by $0.166 million (30 June 
2012: $0.142 million deficit). The assets of this plan are presented below:

2013

Western Power contributes to the defined benefit Pension Scheme. Pension Scheme members receive pension benefits on 
retirement, death or invalidity. The fund share of the pension benefit, which is based on the member’s contributions plus investment 
earnings, may be commuted to a lump sum benefit. Western Power does not bear the cost associated with indexation of any pension 
arising from the fund share. The state share of the pension benefit is fully employer-financed and cannot be commuted to a lump sum 
benefit.

2013 2012

Movements in liability for defined benefit obligations

2012

FINANCIAL REPORT

WESTERN POWER ANNUAL REPORT 2013 
                               81



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
17 Retirement benefit obligations (continued)

(d)
The amounts recognised in profit or loss are presented below:

2013 2012
$’000 $’000

Current service cost 123 128
Interest cost 68 91
Expected return on plan assets (110) (106)
Total included in 'employee related expenses' 81 113

(e)
2013 2012
$’000 $’000

Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in the reporting year (433) 472
(433) 472

Cumulative actuarial losses recognised 4,540 4,973
4,540 4,973

(f)
The principal actuarial assumptions used, expressed as weighted averages, are presented below:

Unfunded Funded Unfunded Funded
Discount rate 3.4% 4.0% 2.8% 3.1%
Expected return on plan assets n/a 7.0% n/a 7.0%
Expected future salary increases 5.0% 4.5% 5.5% 4.5%
Expected future pension increases 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%

(g)
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$’000 $’000    $’000    $’000    $’000  
Present value of defined benefit obligations 1,893 2,324 1,983 1,352 2,012
Fair value of plan assets 2,103 1,657 1,386 1,204 1,260
Deficit/(surplus) in plans (210) 667 597 148 752

Experience adjustments1 (gain)/loss on plan liabilities 264 133 203 122 162

Experience adjustments1 (gain)/loss on plan assets (490) 130 (8) 140 763
1

18 Contingencies

(a)
Western Power did not have any contingent assets at 30 June 2013.

(b) Contingent liabilities
Contaminated sites

Other

2013

Western Power is currently party to, or is potentially affected by a number of legal claims. Until proceedings relating to these claims 
are finalised uncertainty exists regarding the impact, if any, on the operations of Western Power. 

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

Western Power has reported 101 sites to the Department of Environment Regulation (DER) as either known or suspected to be 
contaminated under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003 . Until Western Power conducts an investigation to determine the presence and 
scope of contamination, assess the risk, and agree with the DER the need and criteria for remediation, Western Power is unable to 
accurately quantify its clean-up liabilities for all known or suspected contaminated sites. Western Power is continuing to monitor the 
sites and will progressively undertake site investigations and remediation on a risk based approach. This approach is consistent with 
the DER guidelines.

Historic summary

In the opinion of the directors, provisions or further disclosures are not required in respect of these contingencies, as it is not probable 
a future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required, or the amount is not capable of reliable measurement.

2012

Contingent assets

Western Power's policy is to disclose details of contingencies where the probability of future receipts/payments is not considered remote, 
as well as details of contingencies, which although considered remote, the directors consider should be disclosed.

Experience adjustments are the effects of differences between previous actuarial assumptions and what has actually occurred.

Principal actuarial assumptions

Amounts recognised in profit or loss
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19 Commitments

(a)
Non-cancellable operating leases

2013 2012
$’000 $’000

Payable within one year 5,514 6,851
5,441 9,036

Payable later than five years 1,315 1,324
12,270 17,211

(b) Capital commitments

2013 2012
$’000 $’000

Payable within one year 347,084 447,611
Payable later than one year but not later than five years 55,189 6,607

402,273 454,218

(c)

2013 2012
$’000 $’000

Payable within one year 209,000 154,000
Payable later than one year but not later than five years 588,000 628,000

797,000 782,000

20 Events occurring after the reporting date

21 Reconciliation of profit to net cash inflows from operating activities
2013 2012

Note $’000    $’000
Profit for the reporting year 191,377 157,131
Non-cash items
Depreciation and amortisation expense 5(b) 232,861 204,893
Written down value on disposal of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets 11(a) 10,445 5,001
Non-cash capital contributions 11(b) (57,585) (66,651)
Non-cash employee related expenses 17(e) 433 (472)
Items classified as investing and financing activities
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (7,294) (8,066)
Interest income 4(c) (985) (1,309)
Borrowing costs 5(f) 311,873 278,750
Movements in operating assets and liabilities
Movement in trade and other receivables (7,648) (23,120)
Movement in inventories (16,602) (21,607)
Movement in trade and other payables (9,374) 66,939
Movement in provisions 11,176 8,284
Movement in deferred income (10,193) 33,150
Movement in deferred taxation equivalent liabilities 78,103 68,235
Net cash inflows from operating activities 726,587 701,158

22 Non-cash investing and financing activities
2013 2012

Note $’000    $’000
Gifted network assets 11(b) 57,585 66,651

Total commitments to minimum lease payments, including properties, information technology equipment and motor vehicles, in 
relation to non-cancellable operating leases are presented below:

Payable later than one year but not later than five years

Lease commitments

Other than the matters disclosed in note 18 of these financial statements and the 'likely developments and expected results of operations' 
section of the directors' report included in this financial report, there are no matters or circumstances that have arisen in the period 
between the end of the reporting year and the date of this report that are likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect significantly the 
operations of Western Power, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of Western Power in subsequent financial years.

Total capital commitments contracted for at the reporting date, including major transmission and distribution capital expenditure 
associated with the Mid-West Energy Project, asset replacements, regulatory compliance upgrades and the state underground power 
project, but not recognised as liabilities are presented below:

Other expenditure commitments
The State Government requires Western Power, by notice published in the gazette, to make the following annual payments into the 
tariff equalisation fund for the benefit of the Regional Power Corporation. The 2013 reported commitments were gazetted on 26 April 
2013 (2012: 7 August 2012).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Parliament of Western Australia

ELECTRICITY NETWORKS CORPORATION (TRADING AS WESTERN POWER)

I have audited the financial report of the Electricity Networks Corporation. The financial report
comprises the Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2013, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, Notes 
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and 
the Directors’ Declaration.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report
The directors of the Electricity Networks Corporation are responsible for the preparation of the 
financial report that gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards and the Electricity Corporations Act 2005, and for such internal control as the 
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
As required by the Electricity Corporations Act 2005, my responsibility is to express an opinion 
on the financial report based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with 
Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical 
requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the Corporation’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial report.

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion.

Independence
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor 
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing Standards, and other relevant ethical requirements.
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Opinion
In my opinion, the financial report of the Electricity Networks Corporation is in accordance with 
schedule 4 of the Electricity Corporations Act 2005, including:

(a) giving a true and fair view of the Corporation’s financial position as at 30 June 2013
and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 
2001.

Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Report
This auditor’s report relates to the financial report of the Electricity Networks Corporation for the 
year ended 30 June 2013 included on the Corporation’s website. The Corporation’s 
management is responsible for the integrity of the Corporation’s website. This audit does not 
provide assurance on the integrity of the Corporation’s website. The auditor’s report refers only 
to the financial report described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information 
which may have been hyperlinked to/from this financial report. If users of the financial report 
are concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to 
refer to the hard copy of the audited financial report to confirm the information contained in this 
website version of the financial report.

COLIN MURPHY
AUDITOR GENERAL
FOR WESTERN AUSTRALIA
Perth, Western Australia
5 September 2013
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